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04 Best Food Holding Company Limited

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company” or “Best
Food”), I am pleased to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “Best Food Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

At the beginning of 2023, the catering industry witnessed a
recovery in consumption, which also attracted numerous cross-
industry operators. Throughout the year, the competition in the
catering industry became more intense as compared to prior years.
Only enterprises with profound understanding on the development
pattern of the industry and the organizational strengths to maintain
pragmatic operation can deliver solid returns.

The Group has been seeing progressive results from consistently
adhering to the business development model of investment and
operational empowerment. We continued to boost operational
empowerment capabilities, particularly by driving the key business
strategies such as franchise operation and digital user operation,
which yielded positive results for various brands of the Group.

One of the strategic directions of the Group’s operation is to
develop the franchise business. As China has a vast territory with
different catering needs across different regions, the franchise
business can adapt to the local market and promote the well-
established brands to different regions.

Another strategic direction of the Group’s operation is to promote
digital operation. The Group previously focused on developing its
digital systems, including the smart cashier, order-via-mobile-app
and membership management system, and will fully utilize the
established systems to carry out in-depth user operations.

The Group, as always, remains confident in the long-term potential
and development opportunities of the catering market in China and
will adhere to its business development model of investment and
operational empowerment, while staying committed to its operation
strategies regarding the development of franchise business and
digital operations. The Group will endeavour to become a leading
and influential multi-brand “new” catering and food platform
enterprise with digital operation as the core in China and the world.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ERHRE ()

Appreciation 0SS 244

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude AR AEZEREZEES  MALFTKRE(KE]) - &
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), &EBZEZPNEBKBEMHRNAEETL TR OILE
customers and business partners of the Group for their strong HRRFOLEHE o I NATRE S KRG &AL
support throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take B I 2 H T EAERKEBREL SR -

this opportunity to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent

contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board REESE

Zhao John Huan iH < B

Chairman TE

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024 BB 2024F3H26H
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06 Best Food Holding Company Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED N

Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company” or “Best
Food”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are engaged in
the operation of, and investment in, more than 10 food and
beverage brands, including “Xinladao” fish hot pot, “HHG” Chinese
fast food, “Yujian Xiaomian” Sichuan and Chongging style fast food,
“King of Clay Pot” claypot rice, “Seesaw coffee”, “West Master”
Chinese bun, “Yuepin” Viethnamese cuisine, “Foook” malatang,
“Dafulan” Hunan rice noodles and snacks, and “Panda Hot Pot”
small hot pot.

For the year 2023, the Group’s total system sales, including sales
of all restaurants, both owned and franchised under the brands of
the Group and its associates, amounted to RMB3,750 million,
representing an increase of 40.4% over the corresponding period
of 2022. As at 31 December 2023, the number of stores under all
the brands of the Group and its associates was 1,060, with a net
increase in newly opened direct-sale stores and franchised stores
of more than 180 stores as compared with that as at 31 December
2022. For the year 2023, the revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB611 million, representing an increase of 13.6% over the
corresponding period 2022.

In early 2023, with the lifting of COVID-19 pandemic control
measures, the food and beverage consumption recovered, which
have attracted a large number of entrepreneurs to enter the food
and beverage industry, resulting in fierce competition. Consumption
subsided from the second quarter onwards, and the performance
of the Group’s various brands differed.

“HHG” focused on the development of food products with high
cost-performance value, and expand its selection of dishes to cater
the diversified dining needs of customers. At the same time, HHG
improved the development of its franchise system, implemented
the policy of “Direct Sales and Franchise Integration”, reformed the
incentive system to actively promote the franchise business, and
opened nearly 30 new franchised stores.

In 2023, “Yujian Xiaomian” focused on improving efficiency and
reducing costs, adhered to promoting digital development,
optimized the ordering, store and membership systems, and
enhanced customer experience and operational efficiency of stores.
During 2023, the brand scale expanded rapidly, covering a variety
of business districts with more than 250 stores.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

“King of Clay Pot” focused on improving product satisfaction,
featuring stewing pots made of purple sand and precise
temperature control technology to ensure the stable quality of
claypot rice. In 2023, it successfully opened nearly 50 stores in
regions such as Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Shanghai and Anhui,
contributing considerable profits to the brand.

“Panda Hot Pot” grew steadily in 2023, doubling the number of its
stores as compared to 2022, while focusing on boosting the
profitability of stores. It explored the efficient and small- sized stores
of less than 200 square meters to lay the foundation for large-scale
expansion and replication in the future.

The performance of certain brands with higher menu prices was
under pressure, and these brands have been implementing various
measures to improve their business models, optimize their products
and expand their channels in order to enhance their performance.

Operational and Digital Empowerment

In 2023, the digital team of Best Food continued to optimise certain
self-developed systems and applications, which have been put into
operation for some of the brands. It focused on assisting the
implementation of the Group’s key businesses, improving the
efficiency of operational decision-making, and realizing the synergy
among customers, traffic flows and cooperative resources of
various brands at the Group level. This will enable the Group to
maximize efficiency of its digital-driven platform as soon as
possible.

Investment Empowerment

In 2023, Best Food focused on the provision of various value-
added services for the brands operated by its associates with a
view to increasing the value of each of the brands. During 2023,
some of the brands operated by the Group’s associates achieved
good operating results and made positive contribution to the
Group’s financial performance. Individual brands have initiated
preparation for listing in the public market. Best Food has full
confidence in the long-term value growth of the brands operated
by its associates.
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08 Best Food Holding Company Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERE WD (&)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased by 13.6% from RMB537.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB610.6 million for the
corresponding period of 2023, among which revenue from
restaurant operations increased by 13.7% from RMB282.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB321.3 million for the
corresponding period of 2023, and revenue from delivery business
increased by 2.6% from RMB207.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to RMB213.4 million for the corresponding period
of 2023, which was mainly attributable to the increase in number of
customers and the improved operating performance of restaurants
as a result of the lifting of the COVID-19 control measures.

Raw material used and changes in inventories
of finished goods

Raw material used and changes in inventories of finished goods
increased by 11.8% from RMB208.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to RMB232.7 million for the corresponding period
of 2023, which was mainly attributable to the normalisation of
restaurant operations after the COVID-19 pandemic. Raw material
used and changes in inventories of finished goods as a percentage
of revenue were 38.7% for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
38.1% for the corresponding period of 2023, respectively, and
such decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction of food
waste as the restaurants were able to operate normally.

Online platform service charges and delivery
fees

Online platform service charges and delivery fees increased by 1.5%
from RMB38.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB39.2 million for the corresponding period of 2023. Online
platform service charges and delivery fees as a percentage of
revenue from delivery business decreased from 18.6% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to 18.4% for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Employee benefit expense

Employee benefit expense increased by 0.9% from RMB173.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB174.6 million
for the corresponding period of 2023, and employee benefit
expense as a percentage of revenue decreased from 32.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to 28.6% for the corresponding
period of 2023, which was mainly attributable to the increase in
revenue during the reporting period.

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets decreased by 16.7% from
RMB84.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB70.6 million for the corresponding period of 2023; depreciation
of right-of-use assets as a percentage of revenue decreased from
15.8% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 11.6% for the
corresponding period of 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue during the reporting period, as well as the
closure of certain underperforming restaurants with lower revenue
during the second half of 2022 and 2023.

Depreciation and amortisation of other assets

Depreciation and amortisation of other assets decreased by 18.0%
from RMB27.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB22.6 million for the corresponding period of 2023. Depreciation
and amortisation of other assets as a percentage of revenue
decreased from 5.1% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 3.7%
for the corresponding period of 2023, which was mainly due to the
increase in revenue during the reporting period, as well as the
closure of certain underperforming restaurants and disposal of
underlying assets with lower revenue contribution during the
second half of 2022 and 2023.

Property rentals and other related expenses

Property rentals and other related expenses decreased from
RMB18.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB18.3 million for the corresponding period of 2023, property
rentals and other related expenses as a percentage of revenue
decreased from 3.5% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 3.0%
for the corresponding period of 2023, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in revenue during the reporting period.
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1 O Best Food Holding Company Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERE WD (&)

Other expenses

Other expenses increased by 7.1% from RMB55.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB59.0 million for the
corresponding period of 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
recovery of the operating activities, of which (i) the daily
maintenance expenses increased by RMB1.5 million; and (ii)
business development expenses increased by RMB1.6 million. In
addition, there was an increase in impairment of property, plant and
equipment of RMB2.3 milion as a result of the provision for
impairment made for the assets of certain underperforming
restaurants during the reporting period. Other expenses as a
percentage of revenue decreased from 10.3% for the year ended
31 December 2022 to 9.7% for the corresponding period of 2023,
which was mainly attributable to the growth of revenue during the
reporting period.

Finance expenses — net

Finance expenses — net (which includes finance income, finance
expenses and interest on convertible bonds) decreased by 9.0%
from RMB51.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB47.2 million for the corresponding period of 2023, which was
mainly attributable to the decrease in interest on convertible bonds
and the decrease in interest on lease liabilities as a result of the
closure of some restaurants during the reporting period.

Income tax expense/credit

Income tax expense amounted to RMB4.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, as compared to income tax credit of
RMB15.5 million for the corresponding period of 2022, which was
mainly due to the increase in tax loss for which no deferred income
tax assets were recognised, as management considers it not
probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilise those
tax losses of certain group entities.

Loss for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately RMB151.7 million, as
compared to loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB156.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Operating losses diminished as restaurant operation business
resumed in 2023. At the same time, the Group recognised
impairment loss on trademarks in the amount of approximately
RMB95.3 million in 2023 (2022: nil). Please refer to the section
headed “Trademarks” below and note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for further details about the
impairment loss.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Non-GAAP Financial Measure

The adjusted loss for the year is an additional financial measure,
which is not required by, or presented in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”). It is calculated
as the loss for the year excluding interest on convertible bonds,
loss on fair value change on derivative financial instrument,
impairment of intangible assets and tax impact in respect of the
impairment on intangible assets. The table below sets forth the
reconciliation of loss for the year to adjusted loss for the year:
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20224
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FARK
Loss for the year FABE (162,695) (166,708)
Interest on convertible bonds MR ES T A 37,815 39,971
Loss on fair value change on MEEBIAAAEE
derivative financial instrument HEEE = 23,754
Impairment of intangible assets mEEERE 95,299 -
Tax impact in respect of the impairment on EREERBIRETE
intangible assets (23,825) —
Adjusted loss for the year FRERARER (53,406) (102,983)

The Group uses such adjusted loss as an additional financial
measure to supplement the consolidated financial statements
which are presented in accordance with HKFRS and to evaluate
the financial performance of the Group by excluding the impact of
certain non-operating, unusual and/or non-recurring items which
the Group does not consider to be indicative of the operating
performance of the Group.

Such non-GAAP financial measure has limitation as an analytical
tool, and should be considered in addition to, not as a substitute
for, analysis of the Company’s financial performance prepared in
accordance with HKFRS. This non-GAAP financial measure may be
defined differently from similar terms used by other companies. The
Group’s presentation of this non- GAAP financial measure should
not be construed as an inference that the Group’s future results will
be unaffected by these items.
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1 2 Best Food Holding Company Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERE WD (&)

Right-of-use assets

Under HKFRS 16 Lease (“HKFRS 16”), the Group recognised right-
of-use assets with respect to its property leases. The right-of-use
assets depreciate over the leasing term or the useful life of the
underlying asset, whichever the shorter. As of 31 December 2023,
the Group recognised right-of-use assets with an amount of
RMB149.0 million (as of 31 December 2022: RMB188.4 million).

Investments in associates

Total investments in associates amounted to RMB229.8 million as
at 31 December 2023, as compared to RMB249.1 million for the
corresponding period of 2022, representing a decrease of 7.7%,
which was mainly attributable to the dividend distribution received
from an associate in 2023, as well as the recovery of part of the
investments due to the capital reduction of an associate.

Trademarks

Net book amount of the Group’s trademarks decreased by 20.3%
from RMB468.3 milion as of 31 December 2022 to RMB373.0
million as of 31 December 2023, which was attributable to the
recognized impairment loss of trademarks for the year ended 31
December 2023 of RMB95.3 million (2022: nil). Please see below
and refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for further details in relation to the trademarks and the
related impairment tests.

Upon completion of the acquisition of Beijing Xinladao Catering
Management Ltd. (“Xinladao”) and its subsidiaries (the “Xinladao
Group”) in November 2018 (the “Acquisition”), (i) the excess amount
of the total consideration for the Acquisition over the fair value of
the net identifiable assets of the Xinladao Group was recognized as
goodwill, which amounted to approximately RMB535 million; and (ii)
acquired identifiable intangible assets of approximately RMB400
million represented trademark of Xinladao Group. Details of the
Acquisition are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 June 2018, 18 October 2018 and 30 November 2018,
and the circular of the Company dated 2 October 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Since completion of the Acquisition, management of the Company
has been conducting annual impairment review on the goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life attributable to the Xinladao
Group in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) 36 “Impairment of assets”, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate potential impairment. For the
purpose of conducting the impairment assessment, the recoverable
amount of the Xinladao Group is determined as the higher of value
in use (“VIU”) and fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCOD”). VIU
is calculated using the discounted cash flow method based on the
business plan of the Xinladao Group as approved by the
management, while FVLCOD is primarily affected by the market
condition of the chain-restaurant industry in which the Xinladao
Group operates.

In the second half of 2023, the Xinladao Group accelerated the
transformation of its business model to cope with changes in the
consumer market and the macro-economy, and pushed forward
the implementation of the strategy of integrating its direct-sales and
franchising businesses. The Xinladao Group also restructured its
owned store network by steadily operating profitable stores and
closing those with unsatisfactory operating results, while investing
in the expansion of its franchised store network. Going forward, the
Xinladao Group will continue to focus on the operation of its
profitable direct-sales stores and expand its network of franchised
stores.

For the purpose of the impairment review conducted as at 31
December 2023, the management of the Company has taken into
account the situation of comparable companies in the capital
markets, as well as Xinladao’s results of operations for the year
2023 and future expectations, including (1) in respect of the
calculation of the fair value less cost of disposal, the management
noted that as at 31 December 2023, the market statistics for the
enterprise value to sales ratios (“enterprise value to sales ratios”) of
certain comparable companies listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) have decreased when
compared to that as at 31 December 2022; and (2) for the purpose
of VIU calculations, the management has updated the Xinladao
Group’s business plan based on its business objectives in line with
the operating scale in 2023, which mainly consists of the number of
directly operated and franchised restaurants. Taking into account
the impact restructuring of the business model and intensified
market competition, the management decided to make a
downward adjustment of the target number of restaurants of the
Xinladao Group’s directly operated and franchised outlets during
the forecast period, which resulted in a decrease in the projected
revenue growth rate for the forecast period.
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1 4 Best Food Holding Company Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EERE WD (&)

According to the management’s assessment of impairment based
on the higher of (1) the FVLCOD calculated in accordance with the
market approach using key inputs as at 31 December 2023; and (2)
the VIU calculated based on the Xinladao Group’s updated
business plan as at 31 December 2023, an impairment loss on
trademark of RMB95.3 million was recorded for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Inventories

Inventories mainly represented the food ingredients used in
restaurant operation. Inventories decreased from RMB24.2 million
as of 31 December 2022 to RMB23.4 million as of 31 December
2023. For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, the
turnover days of inventories, calculated based on the average
inventory at the beginning of the year and that at the end of the
year divided by the costs of raw materials and consumables during
the same year and multiplied by 365 days, decreased from 52 days
to 37 days, which was mainly due to the restoration of restaurant
operations after the COVID-19 pandemic, and thereby accelerated
the inventory turnover rate.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables decreased by 11.4% from RMB90.3
million as of 31 December 2022 to RMB80.1 million as of 31
December 2023, among which, other receivables decreased by 9.4%
from RMB77.0 million as of 31 December 2022 to RMB69.7 million
as of 31 December 2023, which was mainly attributable to the
provision for expected credit losses as a result of certain
consideration receivable due from third party in relation to a
disposal of approximately RMB16.5 million being overdue.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables decreased from RMB168.0 million as of
31 December 2022 to RMB143.8 million as of 31 December 2023,
among which, trade payables decreased from RMB53.9 million as
of 31 December 2022 to RMB48.8 million as of 31 December
2023, and the turnover days of trade payables decreased from 99
days for the year ended 31 December 2022 to 81 days for the
corresponding period of 2023, which was attributable to the timely
settlement of certain purchases.

Borrowings

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had short-term borrowings of
RMB11.0 million (as of 31 December 2022: RMB14.8 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Convertible bonds

As of 31 December 2023, convertible bonds and related interests
totalled RMB594.4 million, representing an increase of RMB46.0
million as compared to RMB548.4 million as of 31 December 2022.
The increase in convertible bonds as of 31 December 2023 was
mainly attributable to the interest incurred and the effect of change
in exchange rate during the reporting period.

Lease liabilities

As of 31 December 2023, the total lease liabilities amounted to
RMB154.7 million, representing a decrease of 29.1% as compared
to RMB218.2 million as of 31 December 2022. Such decrease in
lease liabilities was mainly attributable to the rent payment for
existing lease and the closure of certain restaurants during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Future Prospects

In 2024, it is expected that competition in the food and beverage
industry will remain intense, and franchise business will continue to
grow in scale. The potential for growth in the industry will stay
unchanged in the long run. In particular, companies and brands
that are leading in scale and digital operation capabilities will have
more competitive edge. The Group will stay committed to the
implementation of its strategic deployment, so as to continuously
develop its core capabilities for value creation and bring rewards to
its shareholders, including without limitation:

(i) increasing the value of each brand (including without
limitation, Xinladao and HHG) and enterprise in a bid to
contributing profits to the Group;

(i) adhering to the strategy of developing franchise business for
most of its brands; and

(i)  enhancing its digital operation capabilities.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved not to declare final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

BB WD T ()

R E S

BHE2023F12A31H AR ESLEBANE
R N RMEB04.4H & T B A £20224 12 A
STHMARB484H5E T EAARYKL60EE
JL ° El E2023F 12 A31H » Al AR EHFHIE INE
ZHRBEREENF EREZESHTLE -

HERE

B E2023F12A31H HEBBERBEARK
1547E BT BE £2022F 12 A31THMARE
218 2B BT N [E201%  HEEBEMRLEEZH
REZ2023F12831BILFERNIRAHRENHE
SR RMEBEAZLHPIE °

R AI =

2024 FIEMBERTEHRFMAAR  FFREHE
BREGERE REXEBERXEBERENDED
BORBELEMBFLENBEENRAMMEE A
BREL AEXERTERBRNE HERRK
BOENAEREEAE BERR S8FET
PR :

() RAZSRE(BREETERFIZREMNNE

REEREE SAKEERNE

i) BHEBERBTALCEEABETZHRED
BmE &

iy RABFTIEERE -
RE R B

EEE R ARTETREE2023F12A31H IEFE
ZREAPE B (20224 - fH#) o

BRERARAE

—z-=g8% 15



1 6 Best Food Holding Company Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B WD T ()

The total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2023 was
RMB46.8 million (31 December 2022: RMB210.6 million). As at 31
December 2023, the Group had current assets of RMB201.6
million (831 December 2022: RMB226.5 million) and current liabilities
of RMB298.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB339.6 million). The
current ratio was 0.68 as at 31 December 2023 as compared to 0.67
as at 31 December 2022.

The Group generally finances its operations and possible
redemption requests with internally generated cash flow, bank
borrowings and convertible bonds. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had outstanding borrowings of RMB11.0 million (31
December 2022: RMB14.8 million). As at 31 December 2023, the
Group maintained cash and cash equivalents of RMB35.6 million (31
December 2022: RMB34.1 million). The Group’s net cash-to-equity
ratio (being cash and cash equivalents net of total borrowings over
shareholders’ equity) was 0.53 as at 31 December 2023 (31
December 2022: 0.09).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding convertible
bonds of RMB594.4 million (31 December 2022: RMB548.4
million). Please refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for further details.

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available financing
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital requirements.
Considering the Group’s ability to generate net cash inflows from
its future operating activities, the Directors believe that adequate
funding is available to fulfil the Group’s debt obligations and capital
expenditure requirements for the next 12-month period
commencing from 31 December 2023. Based on the above,
considering the Company’s ability to generate net cash inflows
from its future operating activities and the assets held by the
Company, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company
expects that it will be able to meet its redemption obligations under
the outstanding convertible bonds issued by the Company.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
convertible bonds, lease liabilities and borrowings, and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising share
capital and reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of property, plant and equipment (31
December 2022: nil).

Significant Investments

During the year, the Company did not hold any significant
investment with a value of 5% or more of the Company’s total
assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2023.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

The Group currently has no definite plans for material investments
and capital assets as at the date of approval of this report.
Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2023, there was no charge over the assets of
the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s buildings with
net book value of RMB22.2 million were pledged as securities for
the Group’s borrowings.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: nil).
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1 8 Best Food Holding Company Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

B WA D ()

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio was 92% (31
December 2022: 72%). This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
borrowings and convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet
plus net debt.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars
and RMB, which are exposed to foreign currency risk with respect
to transactions denominated in currencies other than HK dollars
and RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in overseas business operations.
The Group did not enter into any forward contract to hedge its
exposure to foreign currency risk for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: nil).

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risks related to quality control and food
safety

The catering service industry as a whole can be negatively
impacted by reports and negative publicity related to food safety
and quality incidents. Our business, results of operations and
financial condition can be negatively impacted if the catering service
industry experiences slower growth from concerns over food safety
and quality related issues even if such concerns are through no
fault of our own or are not related to our business.

The Company has always adhered to food safety and quality
assurance, by establishing and improved food safety risk
assessment and control mechanisms covering different aspects of
our operations, including procurement, food processing, storage,
logistics and restaurant operations. We also continuously provide
training programs to our restaurant staff to ensure that they have
clear understanding on operating procedures and quality standards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Risks related to discretionary spending and
increased competition

Declining economic conditions in the markets we operate that may
adversely affect average spending per guest. Any material decline
in the amount of discretionary spending of xxx may have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

When experiencing material declines in sales, we will adjust our
strategies to counter their effect on our business. For example, we
may adopt a more prudent restaurant opening strategy and launch
sets so customers can experience the value for money that the
brand provides.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a workforce of about 1,779
people (2022: about 2,162 people). The Group maintains a good
relationship with its employees, and provides them with proper
training and competitive compensation and incentives. The staff are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional
experience and prevailing market situation.

Remuneration packages comprise salary and bonuses based on
individual merits. In addition, the Company had adopted a share
award scheme on 11 November 2019 to provide incentives to the
employees of the Group and to recognise their contributions to the
Group.
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20 Best Food Holding Company Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance. The Board believes that sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices are essential for the
growth of the Group and for safeguarding and maximizing
Shareholders’ interests. The Company has applied the principles
and adopted the code provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as amended
from time to time. The Board is committed to complying with the
code provisions as stated in the CG Code to the extent that the
Directors consider applicable and practical to the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in Part 2 of the CG Code that was in force
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. All the Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023. The Model
Code also applies to other specified senior management of the
Group.

Board of Directors

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jing Shen

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises three executive
Directors (one of whom is the chairman of the Board) and three
independent non- executive Directors. The three independent non-
executive Directors represent more than one-third of the Board. In
addition, all the independent non-executive Directors possess
appropriate business or professional accounting qualifications and
expertise.

As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report,
there were no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) between members of the
Board.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic
development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance, as well as the risk management and the internal
controls of the Group’s business operations.

The Company has distinguished the roles of the chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer of the Company in accordance
with code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code. The chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Company are Mr.
Zhao John Huan and Mr. Wang Xiaolong respectively.

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. The Board shall at all
times comprise at least three independent non-executive Directors
that represent at least one-third of the Board, such that there is
always a strong element of independence on the Board which can
exercise independent judgement.

The Nomination Committee is authorised to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The
independent non-executive Directors are required to provide an
annual confirmation of their independence to the Company and to
notify the Company as soon as possible of any subsequent change
of circumstances that may affect their independence.
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All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and
express their views to the Board and have separate and
independent access to the management of the Group in order to
make informed decisions. The chairman of the Board should hold
at least one meeting every year, with the independent non-
executive Directors and without the presence of other Directors, to
discuss significant matters and area of concerns.

Where a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting
rather than by written resolutions. Such Director will be required to
abstain from voting on the relevant board resolution. Independent
non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
interest in the matter should attend the Board meeting.

The Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the
above mechanisms on an annual basis. During the year ended 31
December 2023, the Board reviewed and considered that such
mechanisms in place were effective to ensure that independent
views and input are provided to the Board.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
Directors of the Board take decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company. The Directors may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board reserves the discretion to decide on all major matters
relating to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the
Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board is satisfied with the
independence of each of the independent non-executive Directors
with reference to the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers that each independent non-executive Director
is independent in character and judgment. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence. The independent non-executive
Directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s corporate
communications.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meeting at least once every three years and any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next following
general meeting, as the case may be, of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

The chairman of the Board is responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each board meeting in consultation with
all the Directors. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to the
Directors for all regular board meetings and the Directors can
include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda
and accompanying board papers in respect of regular board
meetings are sent out in full to all the Directors within reasonable
time and at least 3 days before the meeting. Draft minutes of all
board meetings are circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time prior to finalization.
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are
kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and
all the Directors have access to board papers and related materials,
and are provided with adequate information in a timely manner,
which enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters
placed before it.

EEeLEFZ R ER LB EREEMN
ZEZHMERTE MEEFHEARLHNESFEX
HREBENMERBEREHRENERN RES
SR RRREFHAE LB RE R A6

During the year ended 31 December 2023, four full board meetings A& 2202312 A1 B I FE RN & A H MK
and one general meeting were held and the attendance of each 2 REEFGEHZR - ABRIAS SEFTEESE
Director is set out below: SEFAIET

Number of Annual

board meetings general meeting

attendance held on 6 June 2023

HEESS #2023 %6 A6 A

Name of Director BEEHS R ZHTZBRREFKAE

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) HMLBEE (EE) 4/4 1/1

Mr. Wang Xiaolong FNEESLAE 4/4 1/1

Mr. Jing Shen SELE 4/4 11

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REEASLE 4/4 11

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei B =R 4 58 &= 4/4 11

Mr. Lo Wei-Ren BUEChAE 4/4 1/1
Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formaland SHEZTESFEZTIRHHES —EL2E » R
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he/she R 1A EAAEE E’j ABIES  UEREEH RKEE
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of M EEBEEBRESH T W 2EMEBERE
the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities TR EEB@EZFIHEE T Z2BELRE T - NA 7

and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at
the Company’s expenses.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
changes and developments relating to the Group’s business and
the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at board
meetings or through emails.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Directors are committed to complying with code provision C.1.4
of Part 2 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training they received for the year ended 31 December 2023 to the
Company. The types of training received are summarized below:

e EE AR E ()
BEEARABETLEEARTHE DEBESE
iﬁWZﬂﬂM%Y%c1Mw @iiwyimﬂs1

AILtFE 2RBEFHALEERLRENFESH
MEBRREZBEEERR YR ARAREH
B F P DI RE &% o P R AE ) A R 2L Bt
wm

Reading Attending external

regulatory seminars/

updates programmes

MEEERE 2 B Jp 5 48 2 ot

Name of Director EENS BEHER Mg SEE

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) LEEE(FE) v v

Mr. Wang Xiaolong FTEEEAE v v

Mr. Jing Shen SEEE v v
Independent non-executive Directors BYHITES

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR # % A& v v

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REELE v v

Mr. Lo Wei-Ren BUECRAE v v

The Company’s audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) was EZ#%Et8e )R

established in 2011 and its current members include three
independent non- executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has
extensive commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of
expertise in the fields of accounting and business . The composition
and members of the Audit Committee satisfy the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were adopted in
March 2012 and amended with effect from January 2019, a copy
of which is posted on the Company’s website.
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to perform its duty, including
to review the Group’s financial reporting and other information to
Shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk management and
the effectiveness and objectiveness of the audit process. The Audit
Committee also provides an important link between the Board and
the Company’s auditors in matters coming within the scope of its
terms of reference and keeps under review the independence and
objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed risk management, internal controls and financial
reporting matters.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor.

During the year under review, three Audit Committee meetings
were held. The following matters were discussed and considered
during the three Audit Committee meetings:

(@ reviewed the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023, discussed
audit planning for the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023;

discussed with the external auditor of the Company on the
independent auditor’s report;

reviewed the Company’s internal control system and risk
management system and discussed with the management
on the effectiveness of these systems; and

©)

reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
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function.
The individual attendance of each member is set out below: ZZERKENEEBSRELMOT -
Number of attendance
Name of Director BEENR i E R E
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REHELE 3/3
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 45 & 3/3
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren BHLEE 3/3
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Company’s remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in 2011 and its current members
include one executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no
Director or any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 and amended in
December 2023 to conform with the relevant code provisions of the
CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Company has in place a policy on Directors’ remuneration to
ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration to attract
and retain people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business
and development.

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

In determining the emolument payable to the Directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions of the
Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration. The
remuneration of the Directors is reviewed at least annually.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2023 to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy for the remuneration of executive
Directors, assess performance of executive Directors and certain
senior management, and approve the remuneration of the
independent non-executive directors. The individual attendance of
each member is set out below:

FMEE @ N E2023F12A31 B IFFE &£
Bﬁ/k”;;% LABE AN A RIETTE B 89 BB BUR ﬁﬁ

EFeRbER
MRR - WHEBIIFATEZHNFHH -
BIREHHEEREIINT

FHERTEERETERERE
&4 @

Number of attendance
Name of Director EEMS HE IR E
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 58 &= 2/2
Mr. Wang Xiaolong BN 5 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REEASLE 2/2

No material matter was reviewed or approved by the Remuneration
Committee relating to share schemes of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the
Company, including those members of senior management who
are also Directors, is shown in the following table by band:

TWZEeUEEMIMETMERARREH
F2023F12A3MHIEFEMNBRMDTE AN E K
EEo

= AR EEE 8

EBNTFARASREEREEERBETESY
BREEBKENFMRERN TRIIR

During the year ended 31 December

REBZE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022

(members of senior (members of senior

(HKD) management of the Company) management of the Company)
(& 7t) (AR EREEERE) (KRFISRERREKE)
1-1,000,000 0 1
>1,000,000 3 3

Note: During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, each of Mr. Zhao John
Huan, Mr. So Wai Yin and Mr. Li Jian was not entitled to any emoluments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees payable to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group are set out below:
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RMB’000

TAR®

Audit services EaH RS 1,950
Non-audit services (ESG Report Supporting Service) FEE 51k 7 (ESGIR & IR %) 153
2,103

The Company’s nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established according to the Listing Rules, with a
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee’s current
members include one executive Director and two independent non-
executive Directors:

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board structure, size and composition, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted
in March 2012 and revised in August 2013, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website.

ARR BB EMRAKIARNRIREREZES
(MREZEg]) YAVEOREHE -RREZ
BEeRRNERE BRI TETAMAR LI
HITES:

HeBEE(REZEELE)
REAERE
B 4 55 £

RAZBENTIERECRRTESTEMNRE
MENAK MEEERKAEFTEXNENA
T HREERENZEETUREZTEEFER
BExgRbEHE UNFEBIIFNTEENS
S e

REZESNHRESDED R2012F3 RN E
R2013F8 HBE]  YEFEH R ARG MENR -

BRERERAR —z-=f4% 20



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERHRE (&)

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider
a variety of factors including without limitation the following in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@  reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the food and
beverage industry and other related industries;

(c)  whether he/she has undertaken to devote sufficient time and
attention to the Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(e) the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

M compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive Director; and

(@ any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates for its
consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make recommendations
for the Board’s consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates objectively with
due regards to the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). Diversity of the Board will be considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, as
well as other attributes and strengths that relate to the Company’s
business model and specific needs from time to time. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will be reported
formally to the Board for decision.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, recommend to set
measurable targets to achieve board diversity, made
recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.
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The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

BELEBIKEN L FEBEREINAT

Number of attendance
Name of Director EENF HERE
Mr. Zhao John Huan HSEUT A 1/1
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REEFAE 11
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 5 &= 11

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board continued to
monitor its composition with regard to the Board Diversity Policy
which requires that appointment of Directors to be made based on
merit and candidates should be considered against objective
criteria, including diversity aspects such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background and professional experience. In order
to maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills,
experience and background on the Board, the Nomination
Committee developed measurable objectives to implement this
policy and monitored progress towards achieving these objectives
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The current Board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each Director, against
the Company’s business model and specific needs.

The Directors believe diversity is important to enhance the Board’s
effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to
maintain high standards of corporate governance. The Directors will
continue to monitor and develop new objectives for implementing
and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it
considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the
Company and the market from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board is in progress of identifying female candidate(s) who
possesses suitable skills, qualifications and experience to join the
Board in order to enhance gender diversity at the Board level. The
Board targets to appoint at least one Director of a different gender
no later than 31 December 2024, and will continue to seek
opportunities to increase female representation on the Board. The
Company will ensure that gender diversity is taken into account
when recruiting staff members of mid to senior levels and ensure
that sufficient resources are available for providing appropriate
trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity.

The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. To
achieve diversity at workforce level, the Group has put in place
appropriate recruitment and selection practices such that a diverse
range of candidates are considered. The Group has also
established talent management and training programs to provide
career development guidance and promotion opportunities to
develop a broad and diverse pool of skilled and experienced
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
was not aware of any mitigating factors or circumstances which
make achieving gender diversity across the workforce (including
senior management) more challenging or less relevant. For details
of gender ratio in the workforce (including senior management),
please refer to the section headed “Employee Development and
Training Indicators” in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report contained in this report.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
code provision A.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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34 Best Food Holding Company Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERHRE (&)

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk
management and internal controls of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound risk management and internal controls system
to safeguard the interest of Shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board has delegated to executive management the
implementation of the system of risk management and internal
controls and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

The system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
include a defined management structure and the delineated limit to
its powers. The purpose of the system is to assist the Group in
identifying and managing significant risks faced in achieving its
business objectives, safeguarding assets from unauthorized
diversion or disposal, and ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records to provide reliable financial information for
internal use or publication, and to ensure the compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. The above monitoring system is
designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risks of the
operating systems failure of the Group or the failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance
against major misrepresentation or loss, rather than absolute
assurance.

The Group has established an internal audit function to assist the
Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously
reviewing the effectiveness of the system of risk management and
internal controls of the Group. The Group has integrated risk
management into its core business practices. The relevant
operating units of the Group continuously review and assess the
potential risk conditions that may affect their achievement of the
business objectives of the unit and/or the Group. The review
process includes assessing whether the current internal control
system is still appropriate, whether the potential risks have been
adequately addressed, and/or whether it needs to be updated.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and
internal controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023. Members of the management team confirmed the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
controls of their responsible areas during the year. The Board
periodically receives (at least once a year) reports from the Group’s
management regarding financial, operational and compliance
controls, as well as the establishment, review and assessment of
the internal control and risk management functions of the Group.
The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of risk management and internal controls
maintained by the Group throughout the year ended 31 December
2023, provided reasonable assurance against material financial
misstatements or loss, including the safeguarding of assets, the
maintenance of proper accounting records, the reliability of financial
information, compliance with appropriate legislation and regulation,
and the identification and containment of business risks. The Board
confirmed the effectiveness of the system of risk management and
internal controls, including sufficient resources, appropriate
qualifications and experience of employees, and staff training
courses, and adequate budget for accounting, internal auditing and
financial reporting functions. No significant areas of concern have
been identified, and the Board considered the system effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated inside information policies and regularly
reminds directors and employees to properly comply with all
policies concerning inside information. In order to ensure sufficient
attention for all reports received, the Group has established a
notification mechanism to handle and discuss internal reports on
financial, operational, internal controls and fraud, etc. Major internal
control deficiencies or reports will be reported to the Audit
Committee.

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Mr. So confirmed that he had undertook no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training and relevant updates during
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERHRE (&)

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for
each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made
adjustments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and
have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group.

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each (the “Shares”). All Shares have the same voting rights and are
entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the Shareholders are
set out in Company’s articles of association.

Pursuant to code provision F.1.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code, the
Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”).
Subject to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company, the
Company may from time to time declare dividends in any currency
to be paid to the members of the Company but no dividend shall
be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.
The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of the
Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration of dividends is
subject to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration of,
among others, (i) the Group’s financial performance; (i) the Group’s
capital requirements and debt level; (i) the Group’s liquidity
position; (iv) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Group; (v) the Group’s business operations, business strategies
and future development needs; (vi) any contractual, statutory and
regulatory restrictions; and (vi) the general economic conditions
and other factors that may have an impact on the performance and
position of the Group. The Board will review the dividend policy
from time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute
discretion to update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at
any time as it deems fit and necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the secretary
of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors fail to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

There are no provisions in the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for
Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Suite 11, 70/F, Two International Finance Centre, No. 8
Finance Street Central, Hong Kong (For the attention of the
Company Secretary)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERHRE (&)

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy.
The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Group’s performance to the Shareholders through the
publication of interim results and annual results in a timely manner.
In addition to dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports to
the Shareholders, additional information is also available to the
Shareholders on the website of the Company.

The Company’s general meeting provides a useful platform for the
Shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the
Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s
general meetings for which adequate notice will be given in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company. The
chairman of the Board, respective chairman each Board committee,
or, in their absence, other members of the respective Board
committees, Directors and external auditors will be available at the
general meetings to answer questions on the Company’s
businesses at such meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the Company’s annual
general meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the
election of individual Directors. In addition, the procedures of voting
by poll are included in the annual general meeting circular to be
despatched to the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
maintained sufficient contact details for Shareholders to put forward
enquiries to the Board. In addition, the Company held an annual
general meeting on 6 June 2023 at which Shareholders were able
to communicate their views with the chairman of the Board.
Corporate communications were published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner. Based on
the above, the Board considers the Company’s shareholders
communication policy to be effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed below, there was no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents during the year ended 31
December 2023.

On 30 March 2023, the Board proposed to amend the previous
memorandum of association (“Memorandum”) and articles (“Articles”)
of association of the Company by way of adoption of the amended
and restated memorandum of association and articles of
association (“Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles”)
in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the previous
Memorandum and Articles.

The amendments were proposed to (i) bring the Memorandum and
Articles in line with the latest requirements under the Listing Rules,
including the amendments to Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules
which took effect on 1 January 2022, (i) reflect the prevailing
requirements under applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, and (iii)
incorporate certain housekeeping amendments. The resolution
approving the amendments and adoption of the Amended and
Restated Memorandum and Articles was passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting on 6 June 2023.

The Board proposed to further amend the existing Articles by way
of adoption of the second amended and restated articles of
association (the “Second Amended and Restated Articles”) in
substitution for, and to the exclusion of the existing Articles. The
amendments were proposed to (i) incorporate certain amendments
to implement the electronic dissemination of the Company’s
corporate communications to the fullest extent as permitted under
the Listing Rules, and (i) incorporate certain corresponding and
housekeeping amendments.

The adoption of the Second Amended and Restated Articles to
incorporate the proposed amendments is subject to the approval
of the Shareholders by way of a special resolution to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. After
the proposed amendments come into effect, the full text of the
Second Amended and Restated Articles will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.com) and the
Company (www.bestfoodholding.com).
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40 Best Food Holding Company Limited

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER[NT

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 61, an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company, has joined the Group since 9 August
2016. Mr. Zhao is currently the chairman of Hony Capital. Mr. Zhao
also serves as a non-executive director of Legend Holdings
Corporation (HKSE:3396), a non-executive director of Lenovo
Group Limited (HKSE: 992), a non-executive director of China
Glass Holdings Limited (HKSE: 3300) and the chairman and
executive director of Goldstream Investment Limited (HKSE: 1328).

Mr. Zhao was previously the chairman of the board and non-
executive director of Hospital Corporation of China Limited (HKSE
listed), a non-executive director of Eros STX Global Corporation
(NYSE listed), Shanghai Jin Jiang International Hotels Company
Limited (Shanghai Stock Exchange listed), ENN Natural Gas Co.,
Ltd. (Shanghai Stock Exchange listed), Simcere Pharmaceutical
Group Limited (HKSE listed) and Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science
and Technology Co., Ltd (HKSE and Shenzhen Stock Exchange
listed).

Mr. Zhao holds an MBA degree from the Kellogg School of
Management at Northwestern University, Master’'s degrees in
Electronic Engineering and Physics from Northern lllinois University,
and a Bachelor’s degree in Physics from Nanjing University.

Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 48, an executive Director, has joined
the Group since 9 August 2016, and has served as the chief
executive officer of the Company since 26 August 2019. Mr. Wang
also served as the chairman of Xinladao since 8 May 2019, and the
chairman of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co.,Ltd* (1t 5l
SRBREERAER LT (‘HHG”) since 25 April 2021. Mr. Wang is
currently the managing director of Hony Capital, and joined Hony
Capital in 2003 and has been consistently focusing on investment
in the consumer and retail sector during the past 20 years, with a
particular emphasis on subsectors of retail, fast-moving consumer
goods (FMCG), catering and fast food franchise. Prior to joining
Hony Capital, Mr. Wang served in Lenovo Group Limited. Mr. Wang
holds a master of business administration degree from Tsinghua
University School of Economics and Management in collaboration
with Massachusetts Institute of Technology, and a Bachelor of
Engineering degree from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, Youth
Talented Program.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. JING Shen, aged 44, an executive Director and chief financial
officer of the Company, has joined the Group since November
2016. Mr. Jing has over 10 years of experience in the consumer
and retail business. He is responsible for managing the company’s
finances, including financial planning, management of financial
risks, record-keeping, and reporting. Mr. Jing has also served as an
executive director of HHG since 7 November 2017, executive
director of Xinladao since 30 October 2018, executive director of
Tianjin Hanfangweiye Food Limited* (KiEEFE2 A DLERAT)
since 30 June 2017, and the general manager of Hongfu
Restaurant Management (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd* (Ri2 B eI (FI)
BRAT]) since 10 April 2017, each being a subsidiary of the
Group. From April 2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing held the position
of chief executive officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial and Trading
Co., Ltd. In 2008, Mr. Jing joined Hony Capital and was eventually
promoted to vice president. Mr. Jing obtained a Master’s degree in
business administration from China Europe International Business
School in February 2008 and a bachelor’s degree from Beijing
Foreign Studies University in July 2002.

Mr. LEUNG Kwai Kei, aged 62, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 4 January 2017. Mr.
Leung has over 30 years of work experience in the food and
beverage industry and retail industry in Hong Kong and China. Mr.
Leung worked in McDonald’s Restaurants (HK) Limited and
McDonald’s China Company Limited from 1988 and used to play
managerial roles in various departments for more than 20 years.
Mr. Leung also held executive positions in other multinationals
including Walmart China Company Limited as the Senior Vice
President of business development and as country manager for
Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited. Mr. Leung currently
works in Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited as general
manager for their China headquarters and Japanese restaurant
business. Mr. Leung holds a master of management degree from
Macquarie University and a bachelor of economics degree from the
University of Sydney.

for identification purposes only

ESRGREEE[BN (B

SEEE ME WOTESEHRAQARMKRBE
H2016F 1ARBMAAEE - S ENHER
MEEEBAFAI0FENLER -HAEERERQA
B RDREVBHE - UBERRER  RF25
EEREEME®RE - SHRER2017F11ATH
RETMEARNITESE R2018F10H30H i
BEFBRBHITESE  R2017F6 530H BIEE
FEEHBERMERDARNITES  LH2017
FA4R0OBRREARBEREE (R BRA A
BEBo P LERARYAREBZWB ARG -
B20149F 48 £20164F 108 * & 5t 4 R Beijing
Niologie Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd. ¥ T 17 X
BE— B o SR AER2008F MALRZILEL HK
BEAAEERE - = E£R2008F2 AR+ B
BRTREREE TEERELTSM - WHR2002F
TARIEFIINEEBERSBRMSE LT EA -

REEKE 6255 M2017F1 A48 REZ T
BRNIERTEE - RAERBERFPEERIT
ENTETEZRBOFIELER - BhEH
1988 F RN EBEEZLBER ARG REESHE
ERARMER TERATRAIFMETEEACH
BOOF - REETNTERNHMBEBEPEEEITERA
EBM BDREETARBTEBER AT XK
AesRaElBaE URERTWE(LEE) BRAR
ZEHEE RRERBEFELEMmBEMN AR
RAFHBEH N AN EREBBILIE - REAER
& Macquarie University ) & 12 218 T B2 L& E
RNEWEEZE 4B -

BRERARAE

—z-=#5% 41
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSREEE/BN (E)

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 46, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 18 May 2011. Mr. Heng
is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. Mr.
Heng is a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-
executive director in Matrix Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1005), Veson
Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1399), Lee & Man Chemical Company
Limited (HKSE: 0746), TradeGo FinTech Limited (HKSE: 8017) and
Bacui Technologies International Ltd (SGX: YYB). Mr. Heng also
serves as the company secretary and authorized representative of
China Life Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. LO Wei-Ren (also known as Mr. Lo Lobo), aged 64, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director since 27 April
2021. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in the international
restaurant chain business. Mr. Lo served as Senior Advisor in
Unitas Capital from May 2014 to January 2016, and was appointed
as Chairman of Babela Group from June 2014 to February 2016.
From October 2012 to September 2014, Mr. Lo served as Chief
Strategic Advisor for the Beijing Xinladao restaurant group who is
mainly responsible for brand re- positioning, organization
functionality restructuring and brand strategic development. From
May 2008 to January 2009, Mr. Lo served as the Executive Board
Director for China Grand Automotive Services Group Co., Ltd., a
portfolio company of Texas Pacific Group. Mr. Lo served as Brand
General Manger for Pizza Hut & Pizza Delivery Home Service
brands from May 1997 to May 2008 and was promoted to the Vice
President and Brand General Manager for Yum China Inc. from
November 2003 to May 2008, with a total of 11 years’ tenure in
Yum China from 1997 to 2008. Mr. Lo obtained an Associate
degree in Hotel & Restaurant management from Katherine Gibbs
Business School in New York in July 1993 and attended the
Executive Management program from Wharton Business School in
November 2007.

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 49, company secretary of the Company,
has over 20-year experience in financial reporting, management
accounting, auditing, tax planning and regulatory compliance,
treasury, corporate finance and company secretarial practice of
listed companies. Mr. So has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company since 9 August 2016. Prior to joining
Hony Capital in September 2008, Mr. So worked as the qualified
accountant and company secretary at Golden Resorts Group
Limited (now known as Kingston Securities Limited, HKSE: 1031)
where he was overseeing overall financial control and reporting
functions, treasury, corporate finance, and regulatory compliance
matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr. So worked in Deloitte where
he engaged in audit assignments for various public/private
companies and leading several initial public offer (IPO) projects. Mr.
So is a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant and a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountant.
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Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 42, the vice chairman of the board and
chief Manager of HHG, joined the Group in 25 October 2016. Mr.
Zhao joined HHG in 2007, and started at the bottom. He has been
working in marketing, operation, R&D department successively,
and accumulated Plentiful experience of marketing, operation
management, product design and development, informationization
construction, establishing new model etc. Mr. Zhao has been
appointed as the chief manager since October 2015 and the vice
chairman of the board since 25 April 2021 of HHG. He has been
rated as “Excellent Friends of Workers”, “The Best Emerging
Enterpriser of Chinese Food Industry”, “Top Ten Catering
Entrepreneur of Beijing” and “Outstanding Party Member in
Community Field of Beijing”. He is also a member of the 14th
session of Central Peoples’ Political Consultative Conference of
Xicheng District, Beijing.

Mr. Li Jian, aged 49, is the co-founder and the vice chairman of
the board of Xinladao, and joined the Group since 30 November
2018. Mr. Li is primarily responsible for the strategic developments
and monitoring budgets of Xinladao, and is involved in major
decisions of Xinladao, including the appointment of executives of
Xinladao. Mr. Li has been appointed as the chairman of Xinladao,
being responsible for overall development of Xinladao since its
establishment, and was involved in the business operation of the
Xinladao until 2015. Mr. Li has over 19 years in the food and
beverage industry as well as catering industry and restaurant
operation business. Prior to establishing Xinladao, Mr. Li established
his own restaurant business under the name Beijing Yuanpin
Catering Co., Ltd in 2000 to provide catering services. Mr. Li has
successively won the titles of, among others, “Outstanding Figure
of Chinese Catering Industry for 30 years” in May 2017 awarded by
China Cuisine Association, “Outstanding Entrepreneur of Chinese
Catering Industry” in November 2016 awarded by China Hospitality
Association and “The Most Influential Entrepreneur of Chinese
Hotpot Industry” in 2015 awarded by China Cuisine Association.
Mr. Li has been the president of China Crayfish Association since
April 2018. Mr. Li completed a secretarial program at Linyi Teacher
Training College (currently known as Linyi University) in July 1995.

Members of the senior management of the Company also include
the executive Directors. Biographical details of Mr. Zhao John
Huan, Mr. Wang Xiaolong and Mr. Jing Shen are set out under
“Executive Directors” in this section.

As at the date of this annual report, there is no relationship between
members of the Board and the senior management.
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44 Best Food Holding Company Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EESHRE

The Directors hereby present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on

pages 72 of this annual report.

The Board resolved not to declare final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023.

As at the date of this annual report, there was no arrangement
under which a Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.
Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company

has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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Share Capital

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 1,578,664,000 Shares
in issue.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out on page 77
to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended
31 December 2023.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no reserve available
for distribution to Shareholders (2022: nil).

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 204 of this annual
report.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Jing Shen

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Lo Wei-Ren

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive
Directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the
Company’s articles of Association.
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46 Best Food Holding Company Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHRE @

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

At 31 December 2023, the interests of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

RARREREBRRBFAGLEREANES
BEEARATLAIAR -FRARIEMBAX
MAEMERIIMEENRBES L -

MR2028F12A31H  RRBIZ2EFZE K@ FITH
ABRARARISNEBEEZE(EERBBEMNE
ST1IEZHFNREBEKRO(TEHFRBEKA]) EXV
)z Bm - HERMDKEREEF  BEERER
KRNGRIBEBESFRE KA EIKGEFTEZE
Rtz #Em BRBEZEETRESITAE AR A
LEBBMERXSGMBERAAI(THRAM]) 2 #E&
NN

Number of Shares Approximate
(including issued  percentage of
Name of Director/ Number of Number of Shares and interest in the
chief executive Capacity issued Shares underlying Shares underlying Shares) Company
(Note 1) (Note 2)
13 & B RN
EZ BRTHRAER ERTRHG HERG (BREERTRG B
S 27) A #A R AR 3) Aok
(B3 1) (Bt 5% 2)
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
HLEEAE ZEEERER (FF3)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong Beneficial owner — 43,418,260 (L) 43,418,260 (L) 2.75%
(Note 4)
TRERAE EREEAA (PF&E4)
Mr. Jing Shen Beneficial owner — 15,786,640 (L) 15,786,640 (L) 1.00%
(Note 5)
RELEE EREEA (P 5E5)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

2. Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.

3. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps
Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman),
L.P., an exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP
(Cayman), L.P. (as sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general
partner, Hony Capital Fund VIII GP (Cayman) Limited. Hony Capital Fund VIl
GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned by Hony Group Management Limited,
which is in turn owned as to 80% by Hony Managing Partners Limited, which is
wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan
owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at 31 December 2023,
Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company and was
beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$610,676,480 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial
conversion price of HK$1.18 per Share.

4. These underlying shares represent the 27,626,620 awarded shares and the
shares underlying the 15,786,640 share options that the Board resolved to
grant to Mr. Wang Xiaolong pursuant to the share award scheme adopted by
the Board on 11 November 2019 and the Company’s share option scheme
adopted on 18 May 2011.

5. These underlying shares represent the 7,893,320 awarded shares and the
shares underlying the 7,893,320 share options that the Board resolved to grant
to Mr. Jing Shen pursuant to the share award scheme by the Board adopted
on 11 November 2019 and the Company’s share option scheme adopted on
18 May 2011.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed below and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2023, neither the Company, its holding company nor
any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

(@) Employee Share Option Scheme

On 18 May 2011, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Employee Share Option Scheme”) in which the
Company’s directors and employees are entitled to
participate. Details of the Employee Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report. No Options were granted under the
Employee Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2023. As at the date of this report, the Employee
Share Option Scheme has expired and no further option may
be granted pursuant thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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On 11 November 2019, share options carrying the rights to
subscribe for up to a total of 31,573,280 new Shares (the
“Options”) were offered to be granted to three grantees
(collectively, the “Grantees”, and each a “Grantee”) under the
Employee Share Option Scheme with an exercise price of
HK$1.08 per Share which shall be vested in the following
vesting schedule: (i) 20% shall be vested on 31 December
2019; (i) 20% shall be vested on 31 December 2020; (iii) 20%
shall be vested on 31 December 2021; (iv) 20% shall be
vested on 31 December 2022; and (v) the remaining 20%
shall be vested on 31 December 2023. The Options shall be
valid from the date of offer (i.e. 11 November 2019) up to 30
December 2028, both dates inclusive.

Details of the Options granted under the Employee Share
Option Scheme are set out below:

R2019F 11 A11H - B IE & B B8 Ik # 3t
B BB A R & % 31,573,280 % T A 15
R ZERE(EREDEREZE T =4
XEANFEBAIXBAl B8R AR
BEAD TEEAEGRERMKB1.08B T WA
EUTHBRBERXEB ()20% 78 12019
F12A31 8 5B (i) 20% 8 KR 2020F 12 A
31H 5 B : (i) 20% B R2021 612 A31 A &
B (v)20%7BHR2022F 12 A1 B E + k(v
4 TN20%7E 2023 F 12 A1 H R E - B
EEEIREEBH(A2019F 11 AR R
2028F 12 AG0R (BRIEEEMA) B -

REEEBREFIRD ZBREFEH
ST

Changes during the year ended

31 December 2023

HZE2028F12A1ALEEZE28

Outstanding Outstanding

Options as at Options as at

Name of Grantee Date of grant 1 January 2023 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 31 December 2023

HZ20235 HZz20235

1A1A 12A31H

HARTEZ i RAT B2

TEANEH RFH BRE SR BTE BEHE BEX EBRE

Directors EE

Mr. Wang Xiaolong ~ T/NEE%E 4 11 November 2019 15,786,640 - - - - 15,786,640
201911 A11H

Mr. Jing Shen SELE 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - - - - 7,893,320
201911 A11H

23,679,960 - - - - 23,679,960

(b) Share Award Scheme (b) MR 17 22 Eh =t &

On 11 November 2019, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme”), to
attract new and motivate existing talents and retaining both.
The Board shall not make any further award under the Share
Award Scheme which will result in the total number of Shares
awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
exceeding 4% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Award Scheme is 63,146,560 Shares, representing 4% of the
total issued Shares of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.
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Subject to the Share Award Scheme Rules, the Board may
select the employee to participate in the Scheme (the “Selected
Employee(s)”) and determine the number of shares to be
awarded (the “Awarded Shares”) to the respective Selected
Employee(s), the applicable vesting date and make an award
out of the pool of issued Shares held by a professional trustee
(the “Trustee”) to be appointed to administer the Scheme to
any Selected Employee. Subject to the compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations (including the Listing Rules
and the public float requirements thereunder, there is no
maximum entitlement of each participant under the rules of
the Share Award Scheme. The Awarded Shares will only
comprise existing Shares which are purchased from the open
market by the Trustee out of cash contributed by the
Company. The Awarded Shares do not comprise any
issuance and allotment of new Shares. There is no provision
in the Scheme Rules regarding the amount payable on
application or acceptance of the Awarded Shares or the basis
of determination of the purchase price of the Awarded Shares.

The Scheme Rules do not provide for the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the Scheme. The Board
will be entitled to determine the number of shares to be
awarded to the respective Selected Employee(s) subject to
the Scheme Rules, the maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Share Award Scheme, applicable
vesting date, vesting period and conditions for vesting of the
awarded shares (e.g. the amount, if any, payable on
application or acceptance of the award and the period within
which payments must or may be made or loans for such
purposes must be repaid, the purchase price or any general
basis of determination of the purchase price of shares
awarded), as it deems appropriate in its absolute discretion.

In respect of a Selected Employee’s employment or service
with the Company or any member of the Group is terminated
for cause or due to resignation at any time prior to or on the
vesting date, all the Awarded Shares that have not yet been
vested of the relevant Selected Employee shall become
returned shares for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme.

The Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of () the 5th
anniversary date of the adoption date of the Scheme (i.e. 11
November 2024); and (i) such date of early termination as
determined by the Board provided that such termination shall
not affect any subsisting rights of any selected grantee under
the Scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2019
and note 31 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.
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On 11 November 2019, the Board resolved to grant an
aggregate of 43,413,260 Awarded Shares (representing
approximately 2.75% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2023) to three Selected
Employees (the “Awardees”), pursuant to the Share Award

R2019F 11 A11E EEF € RBERND
BEFEBNA=ZRETRERE(TERAD
& H % 143,413,260 8% 22 B A% {5 (#8 & R A
N RIR2023F12 AT HE BT AAS ~
#92.75%) EH 5T ¢

Scheme Rules set out below:

Changes during the year ended
31 December 2023

BZ20283F 1281 ALEEZEE

Number of Number of

unvested Awarded unvested Awarded

Shares as at Shares as at

Date of grant 1January 2023 Granted  Vested Forfeited Lapsed 31 December 2023

HZ20235 HZz20235

1A1A8 12A31H

i K 5 B HAREED

B¥AH RABE ERE CEHEE EBRK BAX R 13 & B

Directors Ex

Mr. Wang Xiaolong ~ £/NgE%E 4 11 November 2019 27,626,620 - - - - 27,626,620
201911 A11H

Mr. Jing Shen SERE 11 November 2019 7,893,320 - - - - 7,893,320
201911 A11H

35,519,940 — - — - 35,519,940

Save as disclosed above, no share awards were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The amount of contribution by the Awardees for the Awarded
Shares shall be HK$0.54 per Awarded Share, being 50% of
the average closing price per Share of approximately
HK$1.08 for 20 business days immediately preceding the
grant of the Awarded Shares.

Assuming all the vesting criteria and conditions have been
fulfilled, the Awarded Shares granted shall be vested in the
respective Awardees in five equal tranches on 31 December
2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 respectively. As at the
date of this report, no Awarded Shares have been vested. As
at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share
Award Scheme is approximately 7 months.

The number of awards available for grant under the Scheme
limit as at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was
19,733,300 and 19,733,300, respectively.

As no option or award was granted during the year ended 31
December 2023, the number of shares that may be issued in
respect of options and awards granted under all schemes
during the year ended 31 December 2023 divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue for the year
ended 31 December 2023 is nil.
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As at 31 December 2023, as far as the Directors were aware,
persons (other than Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
ESERE @

MR2023F12A31H  BEEMA LT AT (K
RAIEBSSRITHRABRINRARR Z KM
HBERDT  BECTLHABEZS RS
B3 EARARRTFEZELM RS K

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as & :
follows:
Long positions in the Shares R Z2HFE
Number of
Shares
(including Approximate
issued Shares percentage of
Number of and underlying interest in the
Number of underlying Shares) Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares (Note 1) (Note 2)
g 4| BERAR
(BREERTRA EENEQ
28T 1B E R 5 REBRS) BO
BRRARE 55 ROEE #A (B 3E1) (Bt 5E2)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,622,440 ()  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Exponential Fortune Group Limited TirEEE (M)
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Managing Partners Limited ZEEERER (HE3)
Hony Group Management Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Group Management Limited ZEEERER (HE3)
Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,622,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
Limited corporation (Note 3)
Hong Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) TrEEEE (M)
Limited
Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman), L.P.  Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,522,440 ()  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman), L.P. 5 $27% B4 25 (Fff £3)
Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,522,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. ZEEEREE (HFES)
Fortune Eight Alps Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 () 517,622,440 (L)  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%

Fortune Eight Alps Limited

corporation (Note 3)
R EEER (5E3)
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Number of
Shares
(including
issued Shares

Approximate
percentage of

Number of and underlying interest in the
Number of underlying Shares) Company
Name of Shareholder Capacity Issued Shares Shares (Note 1) (Note 2)
B4 & B RN
(BEERITRA ERHBN
2®T HER % KRB R 3) ARk
BRRARE =30} I 13 & B 2B (PMEE1) (Pt 5E2)
Sonic Tycoon Limited Interest in controlled 1,183,998,000 (L) 517,622,440 ()  1,701,520,440 (L) 107.78%
corporation (Note 3)
REERLQA Ry EEE S (HF3)
Easyknit International Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 109,762,000 (L) — 109,762,000 (L) 6.95%
(“Easyknit International”) corporation (Note 4)
KEEREEARAR(DKERE]) XEEEES (HF4)
Notes: Bt
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. 1. FRLIEBZALTRZERDTHTFE -
2. Based on 1,578,664,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2023. 2. 1B 1% W 2023412 A31 B B % 17 #91,578,664,000 A% A% 19
ER
3. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps 3. # = A [R 2 & AFortune Eight Alps Limited 2 3F 2 & i /&
Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIIl (Cayman), ‘A A) 1 Fortune Eight Alps Limited 4 Hony Capital Fund VIII
L.P., an exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIII GP (Cayman), L.P. (— & i Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman),
(Cayman), L.P. (as sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general LP A —EZBEABANERB I ERCERAELE)
partner, Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) Limited, Hony Capital Fund VIl 2 & Kt i /A &) ° Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. g
GP (Cayman) Limited is wholly owned by Hony Group Management Limited, HE K — % @45 % AHony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman)
which is in turn owned as to 80% by Hony Managing Partners Limited, which is Limited & ¥ = Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Limited F
wholly owned by Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr. Zhao John Huan Hony Group Management Limited & & # & °Hony Managing
owns 49% of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. As at 31 December 2023, Partners Limited # & Hony Group Management Limited 80%
Sonic Tycoon Limited held 1,183,998,000 shares in the Company and was # % ° Hony Managing Partners Limited £ Exponential Fortune
beneficially interested in convertible bonds in the principal amount of Group Limited 2 & # A& + # < &l % 4 ¥ A Exponential
HK$610,676,480 which is convertible into 517,522,440 Shares at the initial Fortune Group Limited 49%## z1 ° 72023412 431 H - £
conversion price of HK$1.18 per Share. THRAREH AR AF1,183,998,0000% Ik 15 I A AN &
#E /610,676,480 Tz AR ES TP HE Enlm &
AR (B % AT 80 R 517,522,440 R IR 1D - BREIRER
FRR1.18ETT ©
4. To the knowledge of the Company based on public information available, as at 4, RATERREAHEEER  HE2023F9H30H

30 September 20283, Easyknit International (the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1218)) was indirectly
interested in an aggregate of 109,762,000 Shares.

The following transactions were conducted between the Company
with its connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing Rules) during
the year ended 31 December 2023 which constituted continuing

K 2 BB (H AR 5 /2 B 22 BT £ 4R £ (B9 AR 5% - 1218)
RS 2 B 4251 109,762,000 % J% 19 2 #E 25 ©

B E20283F12A31HIEFE - A AR EHERRE
AT (EER EMABAUDETATER EMARBE

UAZEBE THEBEBRERS

ETERRETEE

connected transactions that were not exempt from annual reporting

BERENR S :

requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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On 12 January 2023, the Company and Quan Jin Cheng Food
Processing (Beiing) Co., Ltd.” (& R il TEER) AR A F) (‘Quan
Jin Cheng”) entered into () the framework agreement (the “QJC
Food Ingredients and Condiments Purchase Agreement”) in relation
to the provision of food ingredients and condiments by Quan Jin
Cheng to the Group for a term from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 with an annual cap of RMB5,000,000; and (i) the
framework agreement (the “QJC Warehousing Services
Agreement”) in relation to the provision of warehousing services by
Quan Jin Cheng to the Group for a term from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 with an annual cap of RMB2,200,000.

On the same day, Xinladao Trading and Quan Jin Cheng entered
into the framework agreement (the “QJC Ingredient Processing
Services Agreement”) in relation to the provision of ingredient
processing services by Quan Jin Cheng to Xinladao Trading for a
term of 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 with an annual cap
of RMB2,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the actual transaction
amounts under the QJC Food Ingredients and Condiments
Purchase Agreement, QJC Warehousing Services Agreement and
QJC Ingredient Processing Services Agreement (collectively, the “QJC
Agreements”) were RMB2,958,000, RMB1,474,000 and
RMB1,368,000, respectively, which did not exceed the annual cap
under the respective QJC Agreements.

Quan Jin Cheng is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Hony
Capital Fund V, whose general partner is indirectly held as to 80%
by Exponential Fortune, which is in turn held as to 49% by Mr.
Zhao John Huan, being an executive Director. Accordingly, Quan
Jin Cheng is regarded as an associate of Mr. Zhao John Huan and
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, and the transactions contemplated under the QJC
Agreements constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 12 January 2023.
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To review the QJC Agreements which were due to expire on 31
December 2023, on 29 December 2023, (a) the Company and
Quan Jin Cheng entered into a food ingredients and condiments
purchase agreement in relation to the provision of food ingredients
and condiments by Quan Jin Cheng to the Group with an annual
cap of RMB4,500,000; and (i) a warehousing services agreement
in relation to the provision of warehousing services by Quan Jin
Cheng to the Group with an annual cap of RMB2,600,000; and (b)
Xinladao Trading and Quan Jin Cheng entered into the ingredient
processing services agreement in relation to the provision of
ingredient processing services by Quan Jin Cheng to Xinladao
Trading with an annual cap of RMB2,200,000. The term of each
renewal agreements is one year from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024.

Details of the renewal of QJC Agreements are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 December 2023.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
respective transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.
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Related Party Transactions and
Connected Transactions

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards adopted for
preparing the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
above, as at 31 December 2023, there were no other related party
transactions which fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interest in
Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of significance
was entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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A review and outlook of the business of the Company, a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators during the year ended 31 December 2023
and the material factors underlying its results and financial position,
an indication of likely future development in the Company’s
business and events occurred after the reporting period are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis respectively from pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 19 of
this annual report.

Details of principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are
set out in Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 6 to 19
of this annual report and note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the Company’s environmental policies and
performance, the Company’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, and an account of the Company’s key relationship with
its employees, customers, and suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Company and on which the Company’s
success depends on are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report and the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 205 to 272 and pages 20 to 39 respectively of this annual
report.

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s
total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Convertible Bonds

The HK$1,500,000,000 Convertible Bonds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated
18 September 2016, 10 October 2016, 13 November 2016, 22
September 2017 and 22 March 2019, and the circular of the
Company dated 29 October 2016 in relation to the convertible
bonds with an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,500,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) issued by the Company under a specific
mandate pursuant to the investment agreement dated 18
September 2016 entered into between the Company and Sonic
Tycoon Limited (the “Invester”). As at 31 December 2023, the
proceeds from issuing the Convertible Bonds had been fully utilised
in accordance with the intended use.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Convertible
Bonds was converted. The issued share capital of the Company
were 1,578,664,000 Shares. The Investor holds an aggregate of
1,183,998,000 Shares, representing approximately 75.00% of the
number of issued Share as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
Conversion Shares. The Company is able to, and will ensure to,
comply with the public float requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of
the Listing Rules. On 19 December 2022, the Company sent a
notice to the Investor and obtained the consent from the Investor to
extend the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds to 23 November
2025 and to repay the principal and all outstanding and accrued
interest under the Convertible Bond on the extended maturity date.

The Company has been exploring appropriate business
development by acquisitions and/or expansion of existing business.
The Group will keep evaluating its financial position and resources,
and may consider to raise further funds for long-term development
and strengthening financial position of the Group as appropriate.
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Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

Appointment of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent with reference to the
factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees.
Details of the schemes are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Pension Scheme

Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 38(j)(ii) to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in the future years.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the
benefit of the Directors as required by the provisions of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors had
any interest in any business (apart from the Group’s business)
which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, an independent non-executive Director, is
currently the General Manager of Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou)
Company Limited (“Mei-Xin”), responsible for their China
headquarters and Japanese restaurant business.

Although the business carried out by Mei-Xin is of a similar nature
as that carried out by the Group, Mr. Leung does not hold other
positions in the Company apart from being an independent non-
executive Director, and Mr. Leung also does not control the Board.
The Board therefore is of the view that the Group is capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length
from the business carried out by Mei-Xin.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EESHRE (A

Charitable Donations

The Group did not make any donations for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil).

Changes in Director’s and Chief
Executive’s Biographical Details under
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management”, there is no other change in Directors’
biographical details which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the 2022
annual report of the Company.

Events after the Reporting Period

No significant event affecting the Group took place after
31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

There was no change in the external auditor of the Company for
the three years preceding the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Zhao John Huan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRER S

BRER KRB

To the Shareholders of Best Food Holding Company Limited BEEREREBRATIRKRE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

(RESHESTMA LA ERAF)

EAEHFESTHIRR

The consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding E BEBRERAG(ATEBIERR]) REHB
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), A al(A NHZBIEEE]) JEH R FE722203E 1)

which are set out on pages 72 to 203, comprise:

RAaWBmE B

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023; o MR2023F12 AT HWMGEEEABR

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the e BHEZZBILFENGEAEE2AEKER

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year e HEZHAILFEMNGEERRER K

then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then e BEZHILFENGEEBReRER &

ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising e RA B TSR R M uf BREEAHTHERSE
material accounting policy information and other explanatory BREMREE,
information

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

ALK 78 B a B T T

TP ER T RE %

MK : +852 2289 8888 » I : +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB R & ()

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life

o Impairment assessment of investments in associates

Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSER

R GRS )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESFONEERRETSE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life

BERAREREAFHNEERETG

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
FE2HEEUHHEMEE20 -

The Group has a significant balance of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life arising primarily from
the acquisition of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management
Co., Ltd. (the “HHG Group”) in 2016 and the acquisition
of Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (the
“Xinladao Group”) in 2018. As at 31 December 2023,
goodwill amounted to RMB45 million and trademarks with
indefinite useful life amounted to RMB468 million.
EEENBELEEERERFHONBREERE
g HEEZRBER2016FRBILRMERERER
BERARI(THAEAER]) RP2018F W L R#TR
BEREEBARAR(HREEE]) - R2023F12
ABIH BERGEETARE MAAERER
FHOEZR68EETARKE -

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life are
subject to impairment assessment annually and when
there is an indication of impairment. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful lives are allocated to the cash generating
units (“CGUs”) of the relevant group of restaurants. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined by the
higher of the fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”)
and value in use (“VIU”).

HEMAEERCAFHNARATFEREFER
ERREETREN G - RTERENS  BERA
EERAGCHAFH ARIEEZEABEEANZER
eEABM(ReEEASBAM]) BEELESEM ZATK
BB IRBAAEBEREERATARBERG
EXADBEGFERAEE(ERAEEMEZRSEE

F o

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed the
following procedures:

RESZARESFFTE RACHITATERF:

° Obtaining an understanding of the management’s

assessment process of the estimated recoverable
amounts of CGUs to which goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful lives are allocated, and assessing
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or
fraud;
THREEEHES ERERAEAERAERFH
ZEABRNRSESAENL 2 MR E S BTG
B WRABEEMATHEUENEE REAM
BERRBREZOKT flmEHRNE . T8 ¢t
NREERREIMFAOGRN - T EKRNER
B E A R

° Evaluating the management’s process in performing
impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful life, including the assessment as
to whether any indication of impairment exists during
the year ended 31 December 2023;
HHEEEYRELRAREREAFHNBEN
BERTHBIE - SR AEE2023F12 4311 1E
FERAFEEMARETR

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuer engaged by the Group to
determine the recoverable amounts, based on the
higher of FVLCOD and VIU, of the CGUs;

i EEEERANBLAEEMNER Ik
FEEMN URAALBEREEKRAEGTHEEM
BEZRREEEREEEEUMNATKE S5

ERERERAT —Eo=£5% 03



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB R & ()

Key Audit Matter
BRETSER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESFONEERRETSE

As at 31 December 2023, management engaged an
independent external valuer to assist in performing the
impairment assessments, based on the updated forecasts
and assumptions approved by management.

2023 12H31H EBEECBEB LINIMEE
B EREIBEMIEZ HHTBARRE - BT
BB R AR ©

For calculation of FVLCOD, market approach is used,
where significant judgements are required to determine
the assumptions, including valuation multiples (such as
enterprise value to sales multiple) of comparable
companies, discount for lack of marketability (“DLOM”),
control premium and estimated cost of disposal adopted
in the valuation model.
HRAnBERHEXKANGELRAMS A H
REZEHERABGREERR  EETELRA
AZHEERHWNrXEEYHEREE) R
mSmBEMEE(REZTERB I ED  ZHER
BREBERY KB HERR -

For calculation of VIU, significant judgements are required
to estimate the future cash flows of the CGUs of the
relevant group of restaurants and to determine the
assumptions, including the revenue growth rates, gross
margin and long term growth rate used in the cash flow
projections and the discount rate applied to bring the
future cash flows back to their present values.
HREREEZFE FTEELERHAAGUGETE
HERANNBSELENNRKRESRE I E
ERZ BRESREBRAPEANKRAERER - F
MERERHERXR UERRERKRBEERENRE
HEMEANFEHE -
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Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;
SERTAREERENEE I

For calculation of FVLCOD of the CGUs, evaluating
the appropriateness of the selection of comparable
companies by comparing the business profiles of the
CGUs with those of the respective comparable
companies, and assessing the reasonableness of
DLOM, control premium and estimated cost of
disposal adopted;

MR ELAEMZ AABERL &K ARG
H BB BReELSBM 2 XA EBRER
BUHBARIZEBEN FHEFATELRAF
BEE M - AR PTERAE R Z 5 R
EoEHEREBERATEEKREINS RN

For calculation of VIU of the CGUs, evaluating the
reasonableness of the key assumptions used by
management and the independent valuer, mainly in
relation to:

HRPReEABLUZERBENTE  THER
BRELGEMEANETFERENSEE 2
N

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial

data;
TERSHEMERNE - B EEERE LI E
BEITHE

— the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and
RHBEE SHEMABALERIETL
Bk

— the discount rate, by comparing the rate used
by the Group to those of comparable
companies;

FRE - K BEXEERANLLEEAELR
DA R EEATH R



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSER

R GRS )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESFONEERRETSE

Management’s conclusion on the impairment
assessments is based on the comparison between the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs of the relevant group of
restaurants and the respective carrying amounts of the
CGUs including goodwill, trademarks with indefinite useful
life and operating assets and liabilities as at 31 December
2023.

E TP H R E AT B A R D B R B £ 20234F 12 A 31
HEMEBRENReE4AEMNATRESEER S
EFBURENEEERERE AAERAEA
FHER CEEEREBRE) ZHE-

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that (1) for the
CGUs of the HHG Group, there is no impairment of
goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life as at 31
December 2023; and (2) for the CGUs of the Xinladao
Group, impairment losses of RMB95 million are
recognized for trademarks with indefinite useful life for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

BiE BSEBETHRENGEER BENH XM
GAEECHeESASU BHERABERAEA
FHZEERNB 22023412 A318 L FE I &
B MQERFREEE I RESEEEL - HZE2023
F12A3MBIEFE AEERAIERAFEH AIRE
RREELXBEETARE -

° Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs and the relevant
carrying amounts, including goodwill, trademarks with
indefinite useful life and operating assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2023; and
Bl FT ER2023F 12 AT HIR S EE BN M AT
e hBERE EEERECAFHOEER
EEEENRBEEANNEHRTEN BT ER
MRk

o Evaluating management’s sensitivity calculation over
the recoverable amount of the CGUs, focusing on
those key assumptions to which the calculation was
most sensitive.
TEEEEHReELEBMA KD S ENHR
B WiEMHMEFTEZSTHRERNARERE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
BEBEARTOER BMERABRETEAERANEE
BERBIERAK-

ERERERAR —E-=£5% (5
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESFONEERRETSE

66 Best Food Holding Company Limited

Impairment assessment of investments in associates

BEQATRERE

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
FELHEEU B HEMEI9-

The Group has significant investments in associates,
which are accounted for under the equity method. As at
31 December 2023, investments in associates amounted
to RMB230 million.

SEHEBERANKRESHEEN WERKARSEE
%z c R2023F 12 A31H  BE AR E R2B0E &
TTARE -

Investments in associates are subject to impairment
assessment when there is an indication of impairment.

L RNRREACEFERETREETRERE -

As at 31 December 2023, management engaged an
independent external valuer to assist in performing the
impairment assessments on investments in associates
with impairment indicators, of which the recoverable
amounts are determined by the higher of FVLCOD and
VIU.

R2023F12A31H BB ECEFB LI MEE
B BB BRED R E QAR EETRERT
il BRI E @B IRE AR BER D SR ARG
REEMEZESEET -

Annual Report 2023

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed the

following procedures:

REHZERENFEH LMACHTUTIERF:

Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
assessment process of the estimated recoverable
amounts of investments in associates, and assessing
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or
fraud;

THREBEHBMEARREZGAFTATKOEERN

AEEE YABSEEMGTHEEENEELAE
B A R ERE K - Pl R T8
HARBERRRIMFOGFR2E  FRHEX

b RO BB R

Evaluating the Group’s assessment as to whether any
indication of impairment exist during the year ended
31 December 2023, including:

T BEERBE20283F12A31BLEEFERST
FEEMBETRE T 25

— significant adverse changes in the market or
economic environment in which the associates

operates;
ik J\)\ /\

AEEEN TS RE BB A
EAFHR L

— significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the associates below their costs;

ERBAANBERABIXERHREZERE
DN
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSER

R GRS )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESFONEERRETSE

For calculation of FVLCOD, market approach is used,
where significant judgements are required to determine
the assumptions, including valuation multiples (such as
enterprise value to sales multiple) of comparable
companies, DLOM and estimated cost of disposal
adopted in the valuation model.
HRARBERLEERANGEELRAMIS A &
FEFELERHABREERR BRAELRA
AZHEEBRHWNrEEEYHEREE) R
mE BT E RAERE P ERAOEETHERAR -

For calculation of VIU, significant judgements are required
to estimate the Group’s share of the future cash flows of
the associates.

HREREECHE FEELEXRHB UGS &
SEELBERNTRRREASRE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, an impairment of RMB2 million
was made against the investment in an associate as at 31
December 2023. For the investments in other associates
with impairment indicators, it is determined that there is
no impairment as at 31 December 2023. This conclusion
is based on recoverable amounts, which are calculated
based on the FVLCOD using market approach, exceeding
the respective carrying amounts as at 31 December
2023.

B BEEEETHRENHERET 9 — K5
ENRNAMIR AR E2023F12 A1 BB RE2A &
TARE HREMABBRERROEE AT BE
2023F 12 ABIHI MFE - Z&Ewm HIRETKE &
HET Al eERRAMSEN AR BERD
ERA - WHBEESER2023F12 831 BHREE °

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuer engaged by the Group to
determine the recoverable amounts, based on value-
in-use method, of the investments in associates;

i EEEEAMNBUYGERMMES 2K
FEEMN O URECABEELAEEMERARENT]
W el & &8

° Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

AHE TR ET AN EE T

° For calculation of FVLCOD of the investments in
associates, evaluating the appropriateness of the
selection of comparable companies by comparing the
business profiles of the associates with those of the
respective comparable companies, and assessing
the reasonableness of DLOM and estimated cost of
disposal adopted;
HRBERAREZ A BERL &K ARG
B BB RBEARIZEBENERENELL
RABZEBHR FAHEZAUELERAANE
B URFFEARANRE TS RBILETTE R
HEtHEXN RN SR

° Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amount of the investments in
associates.

AHTERE ARIKRENAKE 2 ER B F A
Wt

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions adopted in relation to the impairment
assessment to be consistent with the available evidence.
RIBHITHRF KA ERBRETEMERNER
BRBBHBEAK -

ERERERAR —Bo=64% O/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB R & ()

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

R GRS )
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB R & ()

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

70 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023

s HEZRAREKLLSERNRENERE
higw  RIEFMERNESRE BELDS
FHERFERIBFEAEENERNTHEE M
femAl gt EHY BERENKELKLLRED
EXEARE ORUFMB/BFEEARD
BEM AALEERBEMBETRER
REIBGEAMBRRTOEBRE - R
FEENBEETIR WRMEEEREE
REER RANEWEENZBEMBRE
BB ERE - AW RRFHEK
BRAAEEY BESETREFELE-

s HEXRAUBBRNERIBLIA &8
MAR BREE URGEMBHRERER
TERRRXZHMER -

e I EEERNERBAXBEINMKES
ERxR BEENENRE AEHESY
BHRRERZERL -RMEAE BEHREFE
M7 A BT - R BB E R AR

EREE-

BREMEREN RMEEZZESBBTEHN
BHE BELH EAEFERRE 8FR
PIFEZE 5t AP 38 ) Hi P B 4% ] O 2 ] BB KRB o

BMERBEZZEQRRIER HARMAEFTE
EEBUMNERERERER Y EWBFMSRE
Bt BB R AR ERMBLIENME
FEMEMER AREERNERT - BNRH
BREPBY MELE B EMNTTE S RIAHIEE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hon Chong Heng.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEETEWEK
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BILEE
2022
Note RMB’000
Bt 5 FARK
Revenue W A 5 610,619 537,510
Other income H A A 6 30,012 9,874
Raw material used and changes in U MZTARME RFE
inventories of finished goods 7 (232,710) (208,106)
Online platform service charges and BETRRBEREXE
delivery fees (39,204) (38,614)
Employee benefit expense EERBMMAX 15 (174,608) (172,984)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTHRREETE (70,579) (84,694)
Depreciation and amortisation of other HEiEEITE L #HH
assets (22,637) (27,602)
Utility expenses ANEEXBH (20,141) (19,146)
Property rentals and other related expenses ¥ % fH & K E b tH 78 51 2 (18,286) (18,836)
Other expenses =i 7 (59,049) (55,118)
Provision for expected credit loss allowance % &t & & 8978 {5 F 18 &k
for financial assets, net BigF 5 3.1(b) (16,917) (6,766)
Impairment of intangible assets BEEERE 20 (95,299) -
Other losses, net HAib B8 558 8 (1,713) (2,191)
Finance income BTN 9 142 130
Finance expenses B 15 & R 9 (9,499) (12,016)
Interest on convertible bonds IR E ST B 9 (37,815) (39,971)
Loss on fair value change on derivative MTESRTAERAARBEEE
financial instrument &5 8 3.3 - (23,754)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates JE(EEE & A RE T, (E1E) 19 1,453 (19,899)
Impairment loss on investment in an GERNAIRER R ERE
associate 19 (1,937) —
Loss before taxation MRBLATE 18 (158,168) (182,179)
Income tax (expense)/credit TSR (AX), He 10 (4,527) 15,471
Loss for the year FREE 11 (162,695) (166,708)
Loss for the year attributable to: FRAEERER:
Equity holders of the Company RARERFERA (151,657) (156,242)
Non-controlling interest FEVE AR 7 2 (11,038) (10,466)
(162,695) (166,708)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
meZEkER @&

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

2022
Note RMB’000
B 5 FARK
Other comprehensive loss Htt2HEEE
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently Hig gt @ E#H B2 EZR
to profit or loss: ZIER
Exchange differences arising on translation FER & /FINEEME £ 2
of foreign operations N = (2,480) (23,839)
[tem that may not be reclassified B g lrgElmosEs
subsequently to profit or loss: BmvIEE -
Change in fair value of an equity investment 2 A BE:T 2 B £ &
at fair value through other comprehensive 5t A E fth % [ U 25 &9 I& A<
income RERAREBEEE — (819)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FARAEMEEEE
net of tax (IR FIR) (2,480) (24,658)
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear £ R HEBESE (165,175) (191,366)
Total comprehensive loss fortheyear FA2HEEAERERN !
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company —AREERFEA (154,137) (180,757)
— Non-controlling interests — SRR (11,038) (10,609)
(165,175) (191,366)
Loss per share for loss attributableto SERAATAERZTEAZ
equity holders of the Company: BEE2ESEREE:
Loss per share (RMB cents) fEET e (AR D)
— basic — HEAK 12 (9.61) (9.90)
Loss per share (RMB cents) frEsE (AR D)
— diluted — W 12 (9.61) (9.90)
ERERERAT —E-=55% (3



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERER

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2022
Note RMB’000
B 5 FARE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERE 16 60,182 80,140
Right-of-use assets TREEE 17 148,968 188,381
Investments in associates e N AR E 19 229,848 249,104
Goodwill EES 20 45,495 45,495
Intangible assets mEEE 20 375,451 472,806
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE = 27 33,426 61,368
Other receivables H b el 218 21 12,154 17,727
Other non-current assets HIEma&EE 25 1,255 1,843
906,779 1,116,864
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 18 23,377 24,211
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 & E M HIE 21 67,916 72,610
Other current assets Hib KRB EE 25 36,788 27,146
Financial assets at fair value through profit & A 7 (B{E 5t & A & # &)
or loss STABRZERMEE 24 36,121 66,721
Cash and cash equivalents ReKBReEEY 23 35,636 34,097
Restricted cash XM HIE S 23 1,744 1,707
201,582 226,492
Total assets EEHE 1,108,361 1,343,356
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables BB S Rk HMFKIE 26 143,789 167,980
Contract liabilities AR AR 29 61,956 62,979
Lease liabilities HEa®E 17 59,089 72,216
Borrowings &= 28 11,000 14,820
Tax payable J& 1~ ¢ 18 5,546 5,213
Convertible bonds — interest payable due FJ 3R &% — —EFE RN HZ
within one year FE - F B 22 16,602 16,366
297,982 339,574
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

mEEEAERXRE)
As at 31 December
M®12A381H
2022
Note RMB’000
B 5 TFARK
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds R E & 22 577,788 532,024
Lease liabilities HeEal 17 95,610 145,946
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRIEEE 27 90,196 114,021
Deferred government grants i 3E U 78 B 30 32 1,183
763,626 793,174
Total liabilities EEAE 1,061,608 1,132,748
Capital and reserves ERXKEE
Share capital J% 7% 33 133,023 133,023
Reserves 1 1 (133,040) 19,777
(Deficit)/equity attributable to equity holders BB N AR AR IFE A Z
of the Company (a) 17) 152,800
Non-controlling interests IEIE IR HE 2 46,770 57,808
Total equity EREE 46,753 210,608
Total liabilities and equity BENRERALE 1,108,361 1,343,356

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 203 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhao John Huan
HLE
CHAIRMAN
TE

BRENRE2ENREAVERELETIR
2024 F3H26 B /E R B - WA T AL
RERES:

Wang Xiaolong
EEE
DIRECTOR
BE

BEERERAR —E-=888% (5



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEm#ER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BERARAERFAA
Non- Asset Non-
Share Share  distrbutable  revaluation  Translation Special  Accumulated controling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve deficit ~ Sub-Total interests Total
TSR EEER F R
BRA  RHEE &E fE ELiRE BARE G ] Nt i B3t
Notes RMB'000  RMB'000 RVMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RVMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
3 TARE TARE TARE TAR%E TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TAREK
At 1 January 2022 R202F1R18 133,023 693,388 929 6,248 22,438 131,606 (700,638) 286,994 68,417 365,411
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (156242)  (156242)  (10466)  (166,708)
Other comprehensive R E 2K :
income for the year:
Changeinfarvalue ofan A% BEHER
equity investment at HEHH AL
fair value through 2HEBREHBRA
other comprehensive RENALERE
income £ - - - (676) - - - 676) (143) (819)
Currency translation SHhEEE
differences- —BERA
associates 19 - — - — 26,061 - - 26,061 - 26,061
Currency translation EHpEER
differences-others —Hit - - - - (49,900) - - (49,900) - (49,900)
Total comprehensive ~ ER2EEE
loss for the year oL - - - (676)  (23,839) - (156,242)  (180,757)  (10,609)  (191,366)
Value of services provided B iR i3t 21 |2 Ik 1
under share option KRB EB T
scheme and share RUEBRBZEE
award scheme 31 - - - - - 2,875 - 2,875 - 2,875
Deemed contribution BEREHE
from shareholder 22 - - - - - 43,688 — 43,688 - 43,688
At 31 December 2022  A202212A31H 133,023 693,388 929 5,572 (1,401) 178,169 (856,880) 152,800 57,808 210,608
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
Gy it - EC))

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERADIREREA

Non- Asset Non-
Share Share distributable revaluation Translation Special Accumulated controlling

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve deficit Sub-Total interests Total
FI2K EEER FER
BRAx  ROEE 1] e EiRfE SRR  RAER Pt [ $: AF
@588 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
[EAN TARY® TARY® TAR%® TARE TAR® TAR%® TAR% TAR¥ TAR%® TAR%

At 1 January 2023 R2028F1A1R 133,023 693,388 929 5,572 (1,401) 178,169 (856,880) 152,800 57,808 210,608

Loss for the year FEREE - - - - - - (151,657)  (151,657)  (11,038)  (162,695)

Other comprehensive FRHM2HEKE :

income for the year:
Currency translation ERREER

differences- —-BEAF

associates 19 - - - - 4,285 - - 4,285 = 4,285
Currency translation ERREER

differences-others —Eith - - - - (6,765) - - (6,765) - (6,765)

Total comprehensive ~FR2EFE

loss for the year HE - - - - (2,480) - (151,657)  (154,137)  (11,038)  (165,175)
Value of services provided B J& 2 2 R IR 13

under share option REEEB T

scheme and share RERKBE

award scheme 31 - - - - - 1,320 - 1,320 - 1,320

At 31 December 2023 1420235128 31H 133,023 693,388 929 5,572 (3,881) 179,489  (1,008,537) (17) 46,770 46,753

BRERERAT —B-=FF% [/



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTREBR

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

2022
Note RMB’000
B 5 FARK
Cash flows from operating activites K& EZHFEBHRERE
Cash generated from operations REXBSRS 32(a) 83,982 82,892
Interest paid [=ENERE (943) (919)
Interest received 2 F S 522 352
Income taxes refund Fr 15 B3R 3K = 46
Income taxes paid BT (78) (463)
Net cash generated from operating RETEHMESRSFEHE
activities 83,483 81,912
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMEBEESRE
Investments in associates HEENFIRE 19 - (2,400)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E %% - R E MR (11,803) (16,284)
Purchase of financial asset at fair value BERAREEFERE
through profit or loss FHirABEm s SREE 33 (27,525) (202,521)
Proceeds from redemption of financial BOEA AL BETEER
asset at fair value ERiANBEmc e REE
through profit or loss Fr 15 5018 3.3 58,705 194,124
Purchase of intangible assets BEERVAE (85) (104)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant  HEME - ME R&E
and equipment FTi5 518 404 688
Amount received in relation to capital B DRI E WEIIR &
reduction of an associate 21 (b)(ii) 10,889 —
Deposit refunded in relation to capital REBERRBEBBEN
reduction of an associate b 26(b) (10,000) —
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEZ AL BESERH
at fair value through other comprehensive ~ E Ehst A Kb 2z >
income T RVE EMSRIE 3.3 = 1,181
Loans granted to related parties m) BB B 75 B K = (6,992)
Increase in restricted cash R 613 218 (37) (746)
Interest received on financial assets at fair R AL BETEAEEH)
value through profit or loss FFABEZERMEE
Pt U A8 525 1,199
Dividends received from an associate WEE = A R IER R AR B 19 3,432 —
Net cash generated/(used) in investing BREZHHAE (A)BEE
activities FHE 24,505 (31,855)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

SERTRERE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE

2022
Note RMB’000
B 5 FARK
Cash flows from financing activities METHMESEESRE
Repayment of borrowings BEER (15,820) (16,000)
Proceeds from borrowings BEHFEHIE 12,000 15,820
Proceeds from loans provided by a related B 75 12t B 2715 2018
party - 305
Repayment of loans to a related party M T EEEXR (305) (2,000)
Payment of lease liabilities THHEEEE (102,153) (76,965)
Net cash used in from financing METESMARSFEHE
activities (106,278) (78,840)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBSSEYE M
cash equivalents ORd) B8 1,710 (28,783)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof RFEHZIRE RIS EEY
year 34,097 62,571
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and Be IR EEYER
cash equivalents (B518), Wz (171) 309
Cash and cash equivalents atendof REXRZHELEREALSEEY
year 35,636 34,097
EEERERAT —=-=55% [0



Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the operation of chain restaurants.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
parent company is Sonic Tycoon Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate
holding company is Exponential Fortune Group Limited
(“Exponential Fortune”), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The ultimate controlling shareholder of
Exponential Fortune is Zhao John Huan, who is also the
Chairman of the Company. The address of the registered
office of the Company is Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-111 Cayman Islands.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars
(“HK dollars” or “HK$”), while the Company’s primary
subsidiaries are incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and these subsidiaries consider RMB as
their functional currency. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless
otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements
are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies

(i) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) as issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622 (“HKCO”).

HKFRS comprise the following authoritative literature:
° Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
o Hong Kong Accounting Standards

° Interpretations developed by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the following:
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instrument, which are measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(ii) Going concern

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB96,400,000. The liquidity
of the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain
adequate cash inflows from operations and sufficient
financing to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due. Considering the Group’s ability to generate net cash
inflows from its future operating activities, the directors of the
Company believe that adequate funding is available to fulfil
the Group’s debt obligations and capital expenditure
requirements for the next 12 months period commencing
from 31 December 2023. Therefore, the financial statements
have been prepared on the going concern basis.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended

standards for the first time for the annual reporting period

commencing 1 January 2023:

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

The new and amended standards listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods, except for the amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction. Upon adoption of the amendments, the Group
recognises deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities for
the temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period (1 January 2022), refer to Note 27 for details. The
adoption of this amendments did not have any material
impact on the financial statements.

(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretations have been published but are not mandatory
for 31 December 2023 reporting period and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These amendments or
interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

Amendments and interpretations

CHREES

e B R R R B R ()

21 FESTHTHREME @)

(iii) 755 B 2 R4 B9 F &T R & A& &T
ZE R (%)

BREBSSTENF1I2RUEITAN)—— BR
BERERXRGEEAMNEENBEREBENIEL
FIESN . Ll FT I8 REBE] < RIS B A
HEMNSERRELE  BEFYHE AN
RRABEODBEERTE - EHEBZEER
B AEEH &R EH (202291 A 1
R HVBERERAEEEMHEHEAGEHRBED
FTEEREEZEENEENMSHEENELT
FrIiSfiaE FIE5B2RME27 o IBETH
EREN AN B RRITBEBERTE -

(iv) /el K ERAY 2 37 48 FIE 2T E R K 22 FE

T EAEBI A RZEER2023F12H
STHZHEHANE B MBI IERFI BT
BYREASERERMN EHZEEE]
AEBZERAREHIRKBRERTISY
REBRABERARRIEEERNTE -

Effective date

EMBH

Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current
BAGHEAE15R
Amendments to HKAS 1
BEASFERE1R ABHANHETEEE

Hong Kong Interpretation 5

HEREDERTEZLIFRE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Presentation of Financial Statements
(Revised) — Classification by the Borrower of a

Classification of Liabilities as Current or  Annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2024

2024 1 H1H 32 #F16 < F
JE B A R

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

20244 1 H1H 3k 2 & F182 F
JEHf [ & R

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause

BEREBESR(BFTX)

HMBEBENZS —EXAHEER R2024F1ATAXZRARZF
BREEGAZEHESZ 7

B R[] 4 3%

BRERERAR —To=4% 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e PR R R B R ()

2 Summary of accounting policies (Continued) 2

2.1 Summary of material accounting 2.1
policies (Continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (Continued) (@

(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations (iv)

not yet adopted (Continued)

Amendments and interpretations

T M2 8

SR E @)

FESHBREME @

B ET (|)
14 7 BR 4 2> $ 18 F1 5 5T 2& A 2
BE(E)

Effective date

EMBH

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB G EAE16

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

BAMBRELRETR R
BAEGHEAETHR

Amendments to HKAS 21

BB EANE2R 2B

Amendments to HKAS 28 and
HKFRS 10

BEY B |EEA FE 285 K
BB G EAFE105R

(b) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.
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Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

EXCHHEERE

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HEFE LY

Lack of Exchangeability

e H Bt

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

REEHAB LN A A E R AIRE
EEHEXTE

(b)
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Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet respectively.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquiree’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from
such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i)  Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKIFRS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

(i)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investments in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any difference between
the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwiill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
statement of comprehensive income.

e B R R R B R ()

21 FESTHTHREME @)

BERARBEASEHEAEATEIME
EHIEZER  BEHNTHE20%E0%ERE
BZBE -BERRRENEZENEA
fR o IR EE  REMIGUKAER -
BREERE NSO D AERREERNWE
BHRSIEREHR ZES - NEERE
ERAIZEREBREBREIN 2BHE-
WERNBERRZHEBARRK BEQ
BZRABREEDEBERRA#MNE
ERABZAARBEFREZE ZEMNER
ARINSEE -

R EE S R B 2 A AR 2 R CE (R
ERAFEN MERLASBEEEMS
HRETHEIZEREHFOBEERR (M
) e

AEBESHBEBERE2EaREZERERA
R -MoBEBREAMETEKREZEY
AREMEEREANER REFDES
ELAEEHAE mAKELDE—BBER
AIZBESNNEBEERBE AR 2%
m (B e HE b EE W W KIA) - A&
BrewRE—FTEE BRIEAKECDR
e RAAEERIEEECHELRN

KIE °

AEEEBEREANECREAEEHE
BERABEARKREDHE ML K
SEZRBE R ATKRODeEERREEZ
MeZRERESHE IXRE2mEEaR
[(RAEREREZDERE SN ] P HER

T

BRERERAR —To=f4% 37



2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold
land classified as finance lease and all other property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvement

40-50 years
Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

— Furniture, fixtures and 3-10 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 4-10 years

— Plant and machinery 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.1(f)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalized and other relevant expenses directly attributable
to such projects. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time when construction
work is complete and the costs of construction are
transferred to the appropriate category of fixed assets when
available for use.

(i) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or Groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or Group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
have an indefinite useful life. Subsequent to initial recognition,
intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
finite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on non-
financial assets (Note 2.1(f)).

(iii) Software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i)  Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii)  Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of comprehensive income.

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the period in which
it arises.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in “Other gains/(losses), net” in the statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
Costs of inventories include the transfer from equity of any
gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for purchases of
raw materials.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for settlement
within 180 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 21 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1
for a description of the Group’s policies for expected credit
loss allowance.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible bonds that can be converted to share
capital at the option of the holder, and the number of shares
to be issued does not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that
does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is recognised initially at the difference between
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole
and the fair value of the liability component, which is included
in shareholders’ equity in other reserves. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to their initial carrying
amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of
a compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition except on conversion or

expiry.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

If the convertible financial instrument is converted, the
respective equity component of the compound financial
instrument, together with the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is
classified as current unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(i)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilites and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising
from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, and the relevant
business taxes on value added taxes.

()  Revenue from food and beverage business

The Group operates chain restaurants for selling fast food
and hot pot food. Sales of goods are recognised when a
restaurant of the Group passes the food to the customer.
Retail sales are usually in cash, by credit card or by online
payment platforms.

Prepaid cards issued for which the services have not been
rendered are recognised as contract liabilities until the
relevant services are performed.

The Group operates customer loyalty programme for its
restaurant operations where customers accumulate points for
purchases made which entitle them to discounts on future
purchases. The Group accounts for award credits as a
separately identifiable component of the sales transactions in
which they are granted (the “initial sale”). The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in respect of the initial
sale is allocated between the award credits (based on fair
value), which is credited to contract liabilities and the other
components of the sales. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the points are redeemed. The amount of
revenue is based on the number of reward points redeemed
relative to the total number expected to be redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

(i)  Revenue from food and beverage business
(Continued)

Sales of finished goods are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the franchisee and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the franchisee’s acceptance of the products.
The franchisee does not have a right of return upon receipt of
the products. The Group does not operate any loyalty
programmes for its franchisees.

(ii) Franchise income

Franchise income is recognised on an accrual basis over the
period in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements.

(i) Management and service fee income
Management service fee income is recognised over the time
when services are rendered.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real
estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead
accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Company, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised on a straight- line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions retrospectively from 1
January 2020. The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether a
rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification.
Lessees adopting this election may account for qualifying rent
concessions in the same way as they would if they were not
lease modifications. The practical expedient only applies to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions
are met: a. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; b. any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and c.
there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.1 Summary of material accounting
policies (Continued)

The Group has also adopted updated Amendment to HKFRS
16 — COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021, which extended the practical expedient to lease
payments that were due on or before 30 June 2022.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as
other income over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred government
grants and are credited to the statement of comprehensive
income as other income on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

2.2 Other accounting policies

Besides the material accounting policies as described above,
the Group has also adopted other accounting policies in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. See
Note 38 for the summary of other potentially material
accounting policies.
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3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance
department under policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Company’s finance
department identifies, evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board of
Directors of the Company provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use
of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK
dollars, US dollars and RMB, which is exposed to foreign
currency risk with respect to transactions denominated in
currencies other than HK dollars, RMB and US dollars.
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and
liabilites and net investments in foreign operations. The
Group did not enter into any forward contract to hedge its
exposure to foreign currency risk for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s monetary assets that are denominated in currency
other than functional currencies of the respective group

entities are as follows:

31 December 2023
2023%F12H31H

US dollar
EpH
RMB’000
TAR®
Cash and bank balances I8 & & 7 17 45 & 553
Trade and other JEUWE 5 R H A
receivables IE

e B R R R B R ()

B R B B )

31 B ERREZEm

(@) ™iHRE kK @)

() SPE Rz (&)

R20283F12A31H  AEENUNZAERHE
BOMEEENIINEEHECEREER
HABEHWT:

31 December 2022
2022% 12 A31 H

RMB US dollar RMB
AR® Ep AR®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TAR® TARE
101 1,467 559
28,995 — 36,496

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%) with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax loss for the year would have been
RMB1,427,000 higher/lower (2022: RMB1,779,000 higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of HK dollar and US dollar-denominated cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings and
convertible bonds. Borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is
partially offset by cash held at variable rates. As at each
balance sheet date, the Group’s convertible bonds were
carried at a fixed interest rate while the borrowings were
carried at floating interest rates based on the prevailing loan
prime rate in the PRC.

Based on the simulations performed by the Group, the
impact on post-tax loss of a 1% shift of interest rates for
borrowings with floating interest rates would be a maximum
increase or decrease of RMB82,500 for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB111,000). The simulation is done
on an annually basis to verify that the maximum loss potential
is within the limit given by the management.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

o trade receivables, and
o other receivables.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
provided by the Group is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. Sales to retail customers for the
Group’s restaurant operation and delivery business are
required to be settled in cash or using major credit cards,
mitigating credit risk. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual
customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are also
subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, no
impairment loss was identified.

Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of
sales over corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information on factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

e B R R R B R ()

b IS EE )

FEWE 550 1E (&)
Bt UL FA20234F K 20224 12 A31 B #1184k
BEERTIEKESREET :

Within Over
6 months 6 months
618 A LA HBiBeEA
As at 31 December 2023 7202312831 H
Gross carrying amounts @R A 9,652 1,675
Expected loss rates TEERE K & 4.46% 31.58%
Loss allowance EEN 430 529
As at 31 December 2022 202212 A31H
Gross carrying amounts REREE 11,500 2,237
Expected loss rates TEHAE R K 1.54% 8.23%
Loss allowance BREE 177 184

Other receivables

Other receivables mainly include consideration receivable in
relation to partial disposal of investment in an associate, lease
deposits, amounts due from related parties, loans receivables
and others. The management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experiences. The Group
measures credit risk using Probability of Default (“PD”),
Exposure at Default (“EAD”) and Loss Given Default (“LGD”).
This is similar to the approach used for the purposes of
measuring Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9.

° Other receivables that are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition are classified in ‘Stage 1’ and have their
credit risk continuously monitored by the Group. The
expected credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.

o If a significant increase in credit risk (specifically, when
the debtor is more than 1 day past due on its
contractual payments) since initial recognition is
identified, the financial instrument is moved to ‘Stage 2’
but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The
expected credit loss is measured on lifetime basis.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

o If the financial instrument is credit-impaired (specifically,
when the debtor is more than 90 days past due on its
contractual payments), the financial instrument is then
moved to ‘Stage 3’. The expected credit loss is
measured on lifetime basis.

In view of the history of cooperation with the debtors and
collection from them, the management of the Group believes
that a majority of the Group’s other receivables are classified
in Stage 1 as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 as there was
no significant increase of credit risk since initial recognition,
and the credit risk inherent in such receivables is not
significant. As at 31 December 2023, the amounts classified
in Stage 2 amounted to RMB2.0 million (2022: nil), as the
receivable from these debtors are past due on their
contractual payments while the duration of past due is less
than 90 days. As at 31 December 2023, the amounts
classified in Stage 3 amounted to approximately RMB23.9
million (2022: RMB6.4 million).

Based on the results of management’'s assessment, the
Group has made provisions for expected credit loss
allowance for other receivables of RMB2.0 million and
RMB23.9 million that are classified in Stage 2 and Stage 3
respectively (2022: nil and RMB6.4 million respectively). The
overall average loss rate applied to the Group’s other
receivables as at the 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
29.45% and 14.24% respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)
During the year, the following amounts were recognised in
profit or loss:

e B R R R B R ()

31 ¥ EKRREZE @

H fth fE L 7k 7R ()
FA- THEBERBHEER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2022
RMB’000
FTARK
Provision for expected credit loss JEWE B FIE 2 FEEEAIE L
allowance for trade receivables B (598) (177)
Provision for expected credit loss HEt B 2 BHERIEX
allowance for other receivables Bt (16,319) (6,589)
Provision for expected credit loss CRMEECEHRERBLEE
allowance for financial assets (16,917) (6,766)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows. The Group also has available banking facilities to meet
its short-term working capital requirements. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent the interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E )

B 7 B B )
3.1 BEERREZE@m

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Within 1 year
15 R

RMB’000
TAR®

As at 31 December

A2023F12H31H

(©)

Between

1 and 2 years
15 ZE2F
RMB’000
TAR®

REE € E b )

Between

2 and 5 years
2F B55F
RMB’000
TARY®E

Over 5 years
HIB5F
RMB’000
FAR®

2023
Trade payables JE 8 5 I8 48,817 = - -
Other payables and H b BT FIB &
accruals FEIRE A 65,159 = = =
Borrowings R 11,075 = = =
Convertible bonds Al AR A & 16,602 654,255 - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 65,701 53,147 47,213 9,285
Total &5t 207,354 707,402 47,213 9,285
Between Between
Within 1 year 1and?2vyears 2and5years Over5 years
1FR 1FE2F 2FEESF B A5 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FAR F AR FARE
As at 31 December  jA2022F12H31H
2022
Trade payables FERTE 5 1A 53,855 — — —
Other payables and H b R FIB R
accruals EIRE A 85,238 - - -
Borrowings B 14,992 — — —
Convertible bonds R &S 16,356 16,356 627,453 —
Lease liabilities HEAE 79,680 71,540 69,968 11,334
Total a5t 250,121 87,896 697,421 11,334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including borrowings and
convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet plus net debt. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s
gearing ratio was 94% (2022: 72%).

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2023 by level of the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E )

B 7 B B )

3.3 2 REEMF @

TRYRANEBR2023F12 A31B A A £
BEFEZEE-

3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2023.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R F2MR FE3R a%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARY FAR% TFAR%
Assets EE
Financial assetsat #®2AAEBHENE
fair value through BEZBHTAEBR
profit or loss ZERMEE
Investment in unlisted A IEETIREE &
wealth management Iz
products — — 36,121 36,121
Total &3t = - 36,121 36,121

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are

TRV RANEER2022F12 A31B LA #72

measured at fair value at 31 December 2022. BEtECZEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
R FEom EIR ARt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TARE TARE TARK
Assets BE
Financial assets at BAREEGE
fair value through BH#HTABR
profit or loss ZERMEE
Investment in unlisted A 3F - TIE B E &
wealth management I #=
products — — 66,721 66,721
Total & — — 66,721 66,721

1 1 2 Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022.

3.3 R REEME ¢

=

1=

TR RELE2023F K£2022F 12 4318 1E
FEZEIMITEEE -

Financial assets

at fair value Financial assets Derivative
through other at fair value financial
comprehensive through profit instrument
income or loss (Note a) (Note b)
RAREE
RAAREETE FEEHEH
BEHEHZEFA RABERZ TESF
Hit2EWE 2 cREE IR
SREE (Mfzxa) (Mt =£b)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR® TARH
Opening balance as at MR20283F1 A1H 2
1 January 2023 HR 1)) 45 - 66,721 =
Addition NE - 27,525 -
Redemption B = (58,705) -
Change in fair value NREEE - 580 —
Closing balance as at R2023F 12 A31H 2
31 December 2023 HiR 4 = 36,121 =
Opening balance as at R2022F1 A1H 2
1 January 2022 B ) 45 84 2,000 57,817 22,543
Addition NE — 202,521 —
Redemption & [l (1,181) (194,124) —
Change in fair value A BEEES (819) 507 (23,754)
Exchange difference & H ZRE - - 1,211
Closing balance as at R2022%F12A31H Z
31 December 2022 HAR & 8R — 66,721 -
ERERERAR —2o=f4% 113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS R R YA ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The Group has a team that manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purposes. The team
manages the valuation exercise of the investments on a case
by case basis. At least once every year, the team would use
valuation techniques to determine the fair value of the
Group’s level 3 instruments. External valuation experts will be
involved when necessary.

(@  All of these unlisted wealth management products are
sponsored and managed by state-owned or reputable
national commercial banks in the PRC. These unlisted
wealth management products are short-term
investments which are denominated in RMB and
redeemable on demand. The expected rate of return of
the unlisted wealth management products range from
1.0% t0 2.4% per annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
from 1.8% to 2.6%) which are updated by the banks
periodically on a quarterly or more frequent basis.
Management uses the expected rate of return for
approximation for both cash flow assessment and the
discount rate in evaluating the fair values of the unlisted
wealth management products. Increased or decreased
expected rate of return by 1% would increase or
decrease fair value by RMB350,000 (2022:
RMB667,000).

(b)  The derivative financial instrument arose from the put
option in relation to the issuance of convertible bonds
to a related party (the “2020 Investor”) of the Company
in accordance with the investment agreement entered
into in 2020 (the “2020 Investment Agreement”).
Pursuant to the 2020 Investment Agreement, at any
time during the 2 years commencing from 29 May
2020, the Company may deliver subscription request(s)
to the 2020 Investor requesting the 2020 Investor to
subscribe for convertible bonds in the principal amount
as specified in such subscription request(s). As a result,
the directors of the Company are of the view that the
above put option constituted a derivative financial
instrument for the Company and should be accounted
for as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

The Company did not exercise the put option which expired
on 28 May 2022. As a result, the derivative financial
instrument was derecognized upon expiry, with a fair value
change of RMB23,754,000 recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@ Impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life have suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.1(f).
The recoverable amounts of groups of CGUs have been
determined based on the higher of the fair value less cost of
disposal and value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of judgement and estimates. Further details
are given in Note 20.

3
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4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for interests in associates at the end of each
reporting period in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in Note 2.1(f). Interests in associates are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of interests in an associate exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is determined based on the
higher of the fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of judgment
and estimates. Further details are given in Note 19.

Management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives for intangible assets based on their historical experience
in the industry and various studies and market research
performed by them, which support that the trademark may
have no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
trademarked products are expected to generate net cash
flows for the Group. It is possible that future results of
operation could be affected by changes in this estimate. A
change of useful lives of the trademarks from indefinite to
finite would increase amortisation charges and decrease non-
current assets.

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets have been determined
based on the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and
value in-use calculations. These calculations require the use
of judgment and estimates. Further details are given in Note
16 and 17.

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. The loss allowances for
financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.

The fair value of programme awards under the Group’s
customer loyalty programme is deferred and included in
contract liabilities which arise as members of the programme
accumulate award points by purchasing food of the Group.
The contract liability is recognised as revenue when the
related goods or services are provided upon redemption of
award points. The proportion of points that are expected to
expire, is recognised to reduce fair value, and is determined
by a number of assumptions including historical experience,
future redemption pattern and programme design.

The amount of revenue recognised is determined based on
the number of points redeemed relative to the total number
expected to be redeemed.
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The Company’s executive directors are the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM”). The CODM periodically reviews
the Group’s internal report in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The CODM has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
CODM focuses on the operating results of the Group as a
whole as the Group’s resources are integrated and no
discrete operating segment financial information is reviewed.
Accordingly, no operating segment information is presented.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R M ()

ARARMITESAETELERARE(EE
MEREE]) - TERKERRETHER
AEEBZARE MTHERBERSE
BR - FELERFECREBEZZTREE
RE E 20234 N2022F 12 A31 B IEEE -
MR AEEERETAEY EEMBIUILE
DEHEER MEBKEERREEPR
AEEBRBEEEE A WEZH|KE
DEBE R} o

KEEPAKHNZHBARA :

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2022

RMB’000

FARE

Restaurant operation BEKE 321,254 282,544
Delivery business INE ETE 213,377 207,935
Sale of food ingredients HERM 75,988 47,031
610,619 537,510

The Group’s principal market is the PRC and its sales to
overseas customers contributed to less than 10% of revenue.
Also, none of the Group’s non-current assets is located
outside the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical information is
presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. For the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no revenue derived
from transactions with a single external customer represented
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R B R ()

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE

2022

RMB’000

FAR®

Franchise income R & WA 13,724 4,905

Government grants (a) BT 48 B (a) 11,647 1,645
Investment income on wealth B EREERA®D)

management products (b) 1,105 1,706

Interest income on loans B3R B A 381 202

Others Hitp 3,155 1,396

30,012 9,874

(@)  For the year ended 31 December 2023, there are no (@) #HZE2023F12A31HILFE  ZE W

unfulfiled conditions or other contingencies attaching to
these government grants. Government grants relating
to costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, investment (b)
income on wealth management products includes

realized gains of RMB525,000 (2022: RMB1,199,000)

and unrealized gains of RMB580,000 (2022:
RMB507,000), both of which are recorded as “other

income” in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

T 68 B 3 4B B 75 4 (7] RO R R M SR E
RFEEM - MRTHBEMZIAR
BB BeRAGIEEEE R MR K
7 # 18 FE H i B SR BRAT 4 B A M o

HZE2023F12A31B ILFE - B E
mi% & WA B1EE &3R8 % 525,0007T
A R # (20224 1 1,199,000 A R #)
o & %38 g 25580,000 7T A R # (2022
£ : 507,000 A R ) - f1 18 W = 39
RErE 2B ERAARYENE M
WAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e PR R R B R ()

7 Other expenses

7 HftFX

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARHY FAR®

Daily maintenance expenses HE#ER 15,950 14,454

Business development expense ERRERY 11,976 10,357

Advertising and marketing expenses EENEHEAX 8,777 8,349

Professional fees EERBEA 5,020 6,057
Impairment of property, plant and ME BERZERE

equipment (Note 16) (F3E16) 3,004 748

Impairment of right-of-use assets (Note 17) {# F3 4 & &= i E (M 5E17) 2,548 3,373

Auditors’ remuneration ZERN N &

— Audit services — EH R 1,950 1,990

— Non-audit services — B R 153 163

Other expenses HEMREY 9,671 9,627

Total other expense Hib A 858 59,049 55,118

8 Other losses, net

8 HEEFHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31HLFE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARK

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and

HEFEREESE KRS 3,581 2,522
HEWE WMELREESISE

equipment (3,200) (2,664)
Loss on closure of restaurants — net BREAEEBE —F %ﬁ (666) (1,528)
Net exchange (loss)/gain & X (1BX), W Fe (171) 309
Others HAb (1,257) (830)

(1,713) (2,191)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

9 Finance income and expenses 9 HEBUBWAKREHR

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARHY TFARE
Finance income B A
Interest income on bank deposits |ITHF A E WA 142 130
Finance expenses BB ER
Interest on convertible bonds (Note 22) Al 2 {1 5 B (T 5E22) (37,815) (39,971)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGRE (8,556) (11,101)
Interest on bank borrowings RITEKF B (350) (433)
Others HAith (593) (482)
(47,314) (51,987)
Finance expense, net M BRFE (47,172) (51,857)
10 Income tax expense/(credit) 10 FTBBiRE "(ER)
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A1ALFEE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Current income tax B AR P 15 B¢
Withholding income tax in relation to o HEB L RRIRE 2 WS
dividends received from an associate ZTERFIBH 339 —
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) PR ZERTERM
(Te¥mBRKD 71 47
410 47
Deferred tax (Note 27) IR E R I (MY 5E27) 4,117 (15,518)
4,527 (15,471)

BEERERAT —Eo=f5% 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS R R YA ()

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE

2022
RMB’000
TFARE
Loss before income tax brETIS TR ES 18 (158,168) (182,179)
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates of 1% 25% i@ F i = 5+ #1
25% (2022: 25%) (20224 : 25%) (39,542) (45,545)
Tax effects of: LATIEB 285
— Associates’ results reported net of —BERRIC2WMES
tax (hEH) (363) 4,974
— Effect of different tax rates of the —RABINETHER A
Company and certain subsidiaries TR E 2 11,424 16,669
— Expenses not deductible for tax — BB NR Y
purposes 858 177
— Utilization of previously unrecognized — — JE L Al AR Z Fi 15
tax losses &5 18 2,499 -
— Tax losses and temporary differences — RERBELEMEHEE 2
for which no deferred income tax TREBRLABBEE
asset was recognized 29,651 8,254
Taxation charge/(credit) MEHAS/ (ER) 4,527 (15,471)
Cayman Islands HEFS

The Company is incorporated in Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.

Hong Kong

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profit above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%).

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Withholding income tax

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Wonderful Dawn
Holdings Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Hong Kong, received dividends from an
associate which is incorporated in the PRC. The taxable
income is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 10%.

The Group’s loss for the year has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

e B R R R B R ()

HIRFEH

RNEE2023F 12831 B IEFE REHB T
MR ZARRIZEWNBRARIFTINIERA
PR A &) — R 1E R B a1 Ak 32 /9 B A R
W ER AR B o 5% FE SR T IR A B 12 10% 19 B 2 44
MIBRRE -

AEBzFRBRENRGIA):

For the Year ended
31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

2022
RMB’000
TARK
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 70,579 84,694
Depreciation of property, plant and ME--BEREZBEITE
equipment 21,220 26,138
Amortization of intangible assets EREEHH 1,417 1,464
Total depreciation and amortization TEREHARE 93,216 112,296
Property rentals MERS
— office premises (fixed payments) —WREWEETENSR 438 442
— restaurants — ZEE
— fixed payments — B E TR 9,737 7,033
— variable lease payments — A EEENR 2,227 1,991
— COVID-19-related rent concessions —COVID-19/8 & EH (6,713) (5,890)
Property management fee MESIES 12,597 15,260
Total property rentals and other rental MERSREMEERBHZ
related expenses i 18,286 18,836
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 20) %&£ & 2= 7 & (M 3 20) 95,299 -
Auditor’s remuneration i
— Audit service — EHRE 1,950 1,990
— Non-audit services — B IR 153 163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS R R YA ()

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE

2022

RMB cents

D AR
Basic loss per share (a) [i% E A B 15 (a) (9.61) (9.90)
Diluted loss per share (b) f& % & 1B (b) (9.61) (9.90)

(a) Basic loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(@) BERELXTER
SREABANREBNARD DS
BEAZBRARAFRNERTEBR
T B E -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALEE

2022
Loss attributable to equity holders of T E SR EREEBEAZ
the Company used in calculating I NAVANNEIE: XSS RSN
basic loss per share (RMB in ZEE(TFARE)
thousands): (151,657) (156,242)
Weighted average number of ordinary B % 77 3% 38 I% A #E S 15
shares in issue (thousands) (FR%) 1,578,664 1,578,664
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of shares in issue to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential shares. The
Company’s dilutive potential shares comprise shares to
be issued under convertible bonds, share option
scheme and share award scheme. In relation to shares
issued under share option schemes, a calculation is
done to determine the number of shares that could
have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company’s shares
during the year) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have
been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 did not assume
the issuance of any dilutive potential ordinary share
since they are antidilutive, which would decrease loss
per share.

The Board resolved not to declare any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

e B R R R B R ()

b) ERFHEEER

ERBEERIVEBABE HITRMN
MEFHEEE  ABRREBALBLE
EWEBERD ARREERERDE
BREATRERES  BRETE LK
MBBFEMETFHET IR - R
EERESAICHTZEOME - &
REMELFE UEERBERTER
BEMKABEEZERBERAAE
BERARBDBRODFARAFAROETE
BE)ARKEZRDEE - Laprat
B2 B 8B BRERITEREREMmA
BERITCBROBMBETLER

HEH 2= 20234 K2022F 12 A31 8 1+
FE2ERHRBEEE BRAIBE
BELTBEREERBEREIR LT
REE MY EBRIBETEMNARE

BEEBK -

EEORATHEE2023F 124318 IE5F
EEIREMA I E (2022 F : £%) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E )

14 Directors’ and chief executive’s 14 EERTHEATHNS
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BEEBZ FTHAUAREQRIEN  ERE
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and ERTBBHE e BEENOT :

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2023 2023 F
Contributions
relating to social
insurance,
housing fund
and retirement Other
Salaries scheme Benefit
B ERE-
EEAEER
Bikesta
e e AL Rz  HEd =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTAR® TAR® TAR% TAR® TAR® TAR%
Executive directors HITEE
Zhao John Huan (Chairman) < B (&) = = = - - -
Wang Xiaolong Y-
(Chief Executive) (TTB##) - 1,490 - 152 972 2,614
Jing Shen =& - 1,160 - 152 348 1,660

Independent non-executive B FEH 7TE F

directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei FBR # 145 = = - — 145
Lo Wei-Ren BHLC 145 - = = - 145
Leung Kwai Kei ZEH 145 = = = = 145
Total 4 435 2,650 - 304 1,320 4,709
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R R B R ()

2022 2022
Contributions
relating to social
insurance,
housing fund
and retirement Other
Fees Salaries Bonus scheme Benefit Total
E R -
EEREE R
RAR&atE
e He TE4T BRzHs  HEd A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR®E TARE TARE TAR® TARE TARE
Executive directors HITEZFE
Zhao John Huan (Chairman) # % 8 (F &) — — _ _ _ _
Wang Xiaolong B (TTH A
(Chief Executive) - 1,615 — 139 2,120 3,774
Jing Shen 218 - 1,180 - 139 755 2,074
Independent non-executive 757 3£ 17 F
directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei TR K 4 138 — — - - 138
Lo Wei-Ren BHELC 138 — — — — 138
Leung Kwai Kei 2EH 138 — - - — 138
Total Fok ] 414 2,695 - 278 2,875 6,262

The executive directors’ and independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group and for their services as

directors of the Company respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a

compensation for a loss of office.

EXFIRZATESRBILIFATESMH
ENDRRRERREEARARAEE
EBEARREEEARANEZT Z2RBEM

e

B £2023F K2022F12A31H 1IF F &
AEBVERNEESMNEMNMESIESNA
NS B 3 i A AN & B I 2 22 B 3k 1E A B B

e -

BRERARAHE

—zo=F68 127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B IS R R YA ()

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BLLEE

2022

RMB’000

TFARE

Wages and salaries ITENH® 138,425 134,751

Contributions to retirement benefits HER N =Ry o e N

schemes 20,626 17,818
Share-based compensation expenses LARS {7 /A E- 1 50 2 BN BA =2

(Note 31) (MF3E31) 1,320 2,875

Staff benefit and welfare EERA B 14,237 17,540

174,608 172,984

For the Group’s defined contribution

plan, no forfeited

contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable

by the Group in the future years.

Two (2022: two) of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in Note 14 above. The
aggregate emoluments of the remaining three (2022: three)

highest paid individuals, were as follows:

RAKEZRAERRFIMS  MESR
Ut SRORT AR A HOR AN SR B R R 2R R R A

Z R -

REBRL D HFMALHRA (20224 :
MEZ)BARBES  EFHME A £
14 5 T =% (20225 : = 8) & 5 % B
ALTZ@BMEmT :

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

2022

RMB’000

TARK

Salaries and other benefits FekEMEF 4,928 4,118
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKTE FIET B3R

schemes 355 339

Compensation for loss of office BB S 1,175 -

6,458 4,457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

15 Employees benefit expenses (Continued) 15 & & & I B8 X% (&)

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the MSEANDKREAEEBLEEE  BAA
Group’s operating results, individual performance and RERAEHBRMBS AT EMETE - 8
comparable market statistics. During the year ended 31 ZE2023F12A31 B IEEE » K&E BRI ([
December 2023, no discretionary bonus was paid by the == 5 HHE 8 X IR B 1B IE AL (20224 :
Group to the highest paid employees (2022: nil). ) o

During the year ended 31 December 2023, remuneration B E2023F12A3ALEE AEERK
amounted to RMB1,175,000 was paid by the Group to the =¥ # &8 X 141,175,00070 A R & B & 1E
highest paid employees as compensation for loss of office. EBERE A (E o

The emoluments were within the following band: BN F Ty iEE :

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLLEE

2023 2022

Number of Number of

employees employees

EE®E EE&H

HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 1 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD 2,000,000 1,500,001 7% 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T = 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD 2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T & 2,500,000 7T 1 1
HKD3,500,001 to HKD 4,000,000 3,500,001 /% 7T % 4,000,000 % 7T 1 —
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

Furniture
Plantand  fixtures and Motor Leasehold  Construction
Machinery  equipment Vehicles Buildings improvements in progress Total
R RE
B 5 B i 28 *E AE BF HEHR ERIRE At
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
TARE TARE TARE TARE TARE TAR®E TARK
Year ended HZ2022F12A31A

31 December 2022 LFE
Opening net book amount 4 4] 85 % & 3,648 21,043 708 24,331 47,848 1,617 99,195
Additions NE 956 2,606 6 — 2,672 4,944 11,184
Disposals e (161) (1,209) - - (1,983 - (3,353)
Transfer upon completion 72 i B & :2 - - - - 5,086 (5,086) -
Depreciation charge wEZE (1)

(Note 11) (664) (5,326) (85) (1,041) (19,022) — (26138)
Impairment charge (Note 7) 3l (& 32 i (15 7) (27) (165) - - (656) - (748)
Closing net book ERREFE

amount 3,752 16,949 629 23,290 34,045 1,475 80,140
At 31 December 2022 4202212 31H
Cost B AR 36,445 119,825 10,381 111,555 294,229 1,475 573,910
Accumulated depreciation 23137 & R E

and impairment (32,693  (102,876) ©0752)  (88,265) (260,184) —  (493,770)
Net Book Amount REFE 3,752 16,949 629 23,290 34,045 1,475 80,140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e RS Rk M ()

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16 Y] % - & E & =R & @)

Furniture

Plantand fixtures and Motor Leasehold Construction

Machinery equipment  Vehicles Buildings improvements in progress Total
B £E

R R#E ST nE &2 HEXR  HERIRE Ch
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
TAR® TAR#® TAR%® TARR TAR®  TAR® TAR%

Year ended HZ2023F12A31A

31 December 2023 TEE
Opening net book amount 4 ) Bk T /% (& 3,752 16,949 629 23,290 34,045 1,475 80,140
Additions NE 324 1,968 552 - 1,784 3,242 7,870
Disposals HE (379) (1,384) (35) - (1,806) - (3,604)
Transfer upon completion 72 i B & :2 - - - - 4,345 (4,345) -
Depreciation charge wEZE (1)

(Note 11) (815) (4,875) (95) (1,041) (14,394) - (21,220)
Impairment charge (Note 7) JEL{E Sz 1 (Bi13E7) (139) (515) - - (2,350) - (3,004)

Closing net book ERREFE
amount 2,743 12,143 1,051 22,249 21,624 372 60,182

At 31 December 2023  A2023F12A31H

Cost A 36,390 120,409 10,898 111,555 298,552 372 578,176
Accumulated depreciation Z it & K (E
and impairment (33647)  (108,266)  (9,847)  (89,306) (276,928) - (517,994
Net Book Amount REEE 2,743 12,143 1,051 22,249 21,624 372 60,182
(@ The carrying value of the Group’s property interests ) AEEVEEZEEMBIEETHE
comprises buildings on land under medium-term land Nz B+ AL E2EF-o

use rights in the PRC.

(o) As at 31 December 2023, no buildings were pledged () M2023%F12A31H EBEFEAASE
as securities for the Group’s borrowings (2022: &z 48 (20224 : R F &
RMB22,240,000). 722,240,000t A R¥E 2 B FERK

i 5)
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Impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2023, in view of the unsatisfied
performance for the periods and unfavorable future prospects
of some restaurants, the management of the Group
concluded there were indications for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on certain property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets. The Group estimated
the recoverable amounts of such restaurant (each of which is
an individual CGU) to which the asset belongs when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of each restaurant has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
the remaining lease term and remaining useful lives of the
respective items of property, plant and equipment with a pre-
tax discount rate reflecting the specific risks relating to the
relevant restaurants. The other key assumption for the value
in use calculated is revenue annual growth rates which are
determined based on historical performance, relevant
operation plans. Long-term growth rate beyond 5 years is not
applicable to the value in use calculation as none of the
restaurant subject to impairment assessment has a remaining
lease term that is longer than 5 years as at 31 December
2023.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation of
restaurants of the HHG brand as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 were as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R M ()

8 5 1

MR2023FE12A31H  ENHHEELEER
AR IAIBOAZ AR KRKR =D E
MIBRT AEBERBAGERATFER
BERRTHETWE BERIXEAKLE
REEEETREN G WEEXEBEF
AEeRE IAEEGFTZEEE(ER
ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁéi{nﬁgéémTW@
-

BREEzT KB B NBRESFHBEER
EMET ZiENREASEEREM
EREESYE BELREBZHTHABK
BTAFEAFH W EEERARESRE
TEAET YRARMTEHEABERZ
BERBRBRBATRAE . 5 — @& F
%E@ZEEF“EEFFE%E gl
BEFESEHEZRAFEREEMETE -
R R20283F 12 A31 H » B#E TR E &
CEBZH THBHYTBEST  HBA
SEZREEERRTAEANERAEEZ

| s
=T HE o
Al 7

R2023F M2022%E 12 A31H  stE A A
mEEEFREEMTERZEEMERNOT

2022
Sales growth rate (Note) HEER X (M) 5%-6% 3%-18%
Pre-tax discount rate M B AT I 3R X 16.3% 16.0%

Note:

As at 31 December 2023, sales growth rate for each of the restaurants of the
HHG brand is 5% for the year ending 31 December 2024, 6% for each of the
years ending 31 December 2025,2026 and 2027, and 5% for the year ending
2028.

As at 31 December 2022, sales growth rate for each of the restaurants of the
HHG brand is 18% for the year ending 31 December 2023, 3.0% for the year
ending 31 December 2024, 6% for each of the years ending 31 December
2025 and 2026, and 5.0% for the year ending 31 December 2027.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation of
restaurants of the Xinladao brand as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 were as follows:

e B R R R B R ()

BB FE 1 &)

R2023F M20225E 12 A31H » st E B
REEREFEREEMERZEEREBNT :

2022
Sales growth rate (Note) PHEIE R (M) —7%-7% 6%-45%
Pre-tax discount rate B B AT T IR =R 16.8% 15.9%

Note:

As at 31 December 2023, sales growth rate for each of the restaurants of the
Xinladao brand is -7% for the year ending 31 December 2024, 7% for the year
ending 31 December 2025, and 3% for the year ending 31 December 2026.

As at 31 December 2022, sales growth rate for each of the restaurants of the
Xinladao brand is 45% for the year ending 31 December 2023, 11% for the
year ending 31 December 2024, and 6% for the year ending 31 December
2025.

The forecasted sales growth rate as at 31 December 2023
was lower than that as at 31 December 2022, primarily due
to that higher sales growth rate in 2023 was expected as at
31 December 2022 considering the lower revenue base of
certain restaurants in 2022.

Based on the results of the assessments, the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amounts of
certain CGUs are lower than the carrying amounts as at 31
December 2023. Accordingly, impairment losses of
RMB3,004,000 (2022: RMB748,000) (Note 7) and
RMB2,548,000 (2022: RMB3,373,000) (Note 7 and Note 17)
have been recognized against the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at
31 December 2023 respectively.

B

M20235F 12 A31H » FHMAREMEEE N B 2202445
1A BEFENEEERER-T% KRB E20254F
12A3MALFEMHEEEREARTY% - il E Z£20265F
12A31ALEFEMHELRER/I% °

MR2022F 12 310 * SR E M EEENEH E220234F
12A31H IEFEMHEEE R K RB45% R EE2024F
12A31THLEFENHEELRER11%  IRE E20254F
12A31ALEFEMNHEERE A6 -

R20283F12 AT HM BRI HEEREEHEN
2022F12AB31AEAK  FERHAREE
Bo022F F FTEBEMHBRAEHRE - Hit
R2022F 12 431 B 18 #2023 F /) 35 & 1 &
EEeRe -

ERFFER A EEEEEETETH
SEAEMN T YK E S EIKN2023F12
ABTEWEREE - Bt - 2023412 A 31
H EXWE BRERSBARFERAEEE
8K M (B 5 Bl #E 3R R (B & 18 3,004,000 A R
¥ (20224F @ 748,0007C A R ¥ ) (M 5£7) &
2,548,000 7T A R ¥ (2022 4F : 3,373,0007C A
R¥) (M7 MM zE17) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance

) REERBXRABRIZEH

sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating EEAEXREWATHREEESERA 2
to leases: ok
Leased
properties
HEWE
RMB’000
TARE
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE
At 1 January 2022 M 2022%F1 1A
Cost BN 564,411
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (290,394)
Closing net book amount FERIREFE 274,017
Year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A31A L& E
Opening net book amount FYREFE 274,017
Additions NE 39,412
Depreciation charge (Note 11) E L (1) (84,694)
Disposal & (36,981)
Impairment charge (Note 7 and Note 16)  J&i{& 5 & (f 537 R i35 16) (3,373)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 188,381
At 31 December 2022 72022612831 H
Cost DN 563,469
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (375,088)
Closing net book amount FEREEEE 188,381
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZ2023F12A31BILEE
Opening net book amount FYEEFE 188,381
Additions NE 43,476
Depreciation charge (Note 11) WESZH (MEE1) (70,579
Disposal & (9,762)
Impairment charge (Note 7 and Note 16)  Jai{E S ! (Fit X7 R M 31 16) (2,548)
Closing net book amount EXREREFEE 148,968
At 31 December 2023 7A2023F12H31H
Cost BX AR 594,635
Accumulated depreciation E (445,667)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 148,968
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e RS Rk M ()

17 Right of use asset and lease liabilities
(Continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance
sheet (Continued)

17 FRAEEEREESEEW

(i)

REEEBERABRZ
& 8

()

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 4F
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARE

Lease liabilities HEERS
Current mE 59,089 72,216
Non-current ERH 95,610 145,946
154,699 218,162

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2023
financial year were RMB43,476,000 (2022:
RMB39,412,000).

i BB E R20238F Bt F E 1
43,476,0007T A K #& (2022 4F : 39,412,000

TARK) -

BREEZRERDTE

—z==#5% 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

17 Right of use asset and Lease liabilites 17 FAESEREEA & @)

(Continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement (i) A2EURERAER2LHE
of comprehensive income

For the year ended
31 December
BZE12AS1BLEE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARK

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FRAEEEZIFEXH
assets
Leased properties HEWE 70,579 84,694

Impairment loss recognized in profit RIBHERNREEE

or loss
Leased properties HEWE 2,548 3,373
Interest expense (included in finance MBERZGtATKER)
expenses) 8,556 11,101
Expense relating to short-term leases RHHERBEER 10,174 7,475
Expense relating to variable lease TETAHERGECTEHE
payments not included in lease liabilites & 1< 5% 18 8 & 2,227 1,991
Negative variable lease payments B2 WERET R & S AR R R
recognised in respect of COVID-19- SEEERANEBZHA
Related rent concession received KRB (6,713) (5,890)
The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was 72023 4F 1 & IR & i i 48 %8 /114,554,000
RMB114,554,000 (2022: RMB82,125,000). T AR (2022 £ : 82,125,000 A R #5) o
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(iii)

(iv)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s leasing activities and
how these are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and
restaurants. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 2 years to 10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a restaurant. For
individual restaurants, up to 100% of lease payments
are on the basis of variable payment terms with
percentages ranging from 6% to 26% of sales. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons,
including minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established restaurants. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all restaurants in the
Group with such variable lease contracts would
increase total lease payments for the year ended 31
December 2023 by approximately RMB318,000 (2022:
RMB355,000).

(iii)

(iv)

e B R R R B R ()

FEECHEEFHRAE AR
7R

INE= S -
E-fHE
104F o

571”#/&5 BEEE
E AN RTETE A SER

HEGRDRBENEERELBREE
2 2 B RGER B A A < B HAE A BB

HEEEF gD HEHS
WEENERNRE HEEETER
EfE R 2GR -

A EEAE AR

BoYXHEHELEEEHEES BN
ZAEMFER - LERNEEMS
ERUENRER2BENRTEST
#100% BEEmE DN F6%E

26% c AN RIEKRERSTERE M
FH BESTFHAKEEZETKAR
BRERE RTHEEEmME 2 #H
ENREBBENTIEGEHREREBH
BmER -

B E2023F12A831H IEF E - K
EETEAERSUEMESHN A
BEMEEEINI0% AENKERE
% 1% H0 49318,0007T A R # (20224 :
355,000 A RH#) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E )

18 Inventories 18 &

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARHY FAR®
Raw materials =Mk 14,370 16,721
Finished goods =K G 9,007 7,490
23,377 24,211
19 Investments in associates 19 BEE N BIRE
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
At 1 January ®1A1H 249,104 240,538
Additions NE - 2,400
Share of profit/(loss) for the year FEIEERNSR, (EiE) 1,453 (19,895)
Dividends received W EIRR B (3,432) -
Disposal upon capital reduction E 1% 8 (i FE21 (o))

(Note 21 (bj(ii) (19,625) —
Impairment A (1,937) -
Currency translation differences EXmE = 4,285 26,061
At 31 December M12H31H 229,848 249,104

1 38 Best Food Holding Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

1\

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2023 AEEHE QA R2023F 12 A31H 2715
are as follows: mR
Place of business/ Measurement
Name of entity country of incorporation % of ownership interest method
BERAE A o B R R AR S B R BREDHE FEAN
2022

Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management The PRC 19.92% 19.92% Equity
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Qidiantongzhou”) (Note 1)

FEHRAABEREERE LR BERAA A W m A
(T=ERALD G

Guangzhou Yujian Xiaomian Catering The PRC 17.16% 17.16% Equity
Management Company Limited
(“Yujian Xiaomian”) (Note 1)

BMBR/NEERERERDF GRNEY ERE
(M R/ ]) (BEaEt)

Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and The PRC 21.43% 21.43% Equity
Technology Limited Company

RINBFEFRERRBRAT H & 2 %

Jiezhi Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% 20.00% Equity

RYTREEREEBR LA [ %

Yuepin Restaurant Management Limited The PRC 20.00% 20.00% Equity
(“Yuepin”)

RYITHmERERBAER AR (WM H - Eabr

Tianshuilai (Beijing) Catering Trade Management The PRC 25.03% 25.083% Equity
Co. Ltd (“Tianshuilai”)

IRRKEEREBBER AR (RAKK]) +HH T 2 %

Shanghai Seesaw Coffee Company Limited The PRC 21.43% 21.43% Equity
(“Seesaw”)

FemEmEEER AR (HEE]) [ W%

Xinyi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited The PRC 42.86% 42.86% Equity

HHEE (GER) BRAA [ U by

Shenzhen SpicyFoook Food Chain Service Co., The PRC 25.00% 25.00% Equity
Ltd. (“SpicyFoook”)

RYITRBE T EREHBRBEBER QA FE e E
(ThtERE =)

Shenzhen Jiabaomimian Company Limited The PRC 13.13% 13.13% Equity
(“Jiabaomimian”) (Note 1)

AT ANE KA & B R A A o b
(Mpngoraml) (M)

Beijing Zhaocai Food Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 30.00% 30.00% Equity

IRBARBEERER QA FE e E

Shenzhen Panda Hot Catering Service The PRC 40.00% 40.00% Equity
Co., Ltd.

RYITHRRIE R ERRIEBER QA H T %
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Note 1: Although the Group’s shareholding in Qidiantongzhou, Yujian
Xiaomian and Jiabaomimian is less than 20%, the Group is able to
exercise significant influence over Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian
and Jiabaomimian, because it has the power to appoint director to
the board of directors of the investees under the Articles of
Association of the investees.

The Group determines whether interests in the investments
accounted for using the equity method are impaired by
regularly reviewing whether there are any indications of
impairment in accordance with relevant accounting
standards.

When impairment indicators of the investments accounted for
using the equity method were identified, management
determined the recoverable amounts by assessing the fair
value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD”) of the investments.
The valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy due to unobservable inputs used in the valuation.

Management engaged an independent external valuer to
assist in performing the impairment assessments on the
investments in two associated. The approach and key
assumptions used to determine investments’ FVLCOD as at
31 December 2023 included: Enterprise value/sales multiple
(times) (2.54 and 1.25 for these two investments respectively),
Discount for lack of marketability (‘DLOM”) (80% and 20% for
these two investments respectively) and Cost of disposal (1%
for these two investments).

Based on the assessment results, no impairment was
recognized for these two investments for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: nil). In addition, Impairment losses of
RMB1,937,000 was recognised for the investment in an
associate due to termination of this associate for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e R R M ()

M1 BEAEERTHRAA BR/NERMERE
FRRDM20%  AEEAHTHEN BRI
WRMEKEITEEATE N TIRNREZ
REUSREBERMY FEEERZERE
FEES-

AEEREHABEEF LR EHRFRA
BREZRBECREREFEMETR - K

EEHEDEDRE-

HME BB KA EREZRE ZRET
R BEEERABFIERENAABERD
ERCANRTETE A W Bl & B o B REE T L
BTAABENE A GEERSRAE
BEREBETHF3A

EIBREE T — BB INEDh E 6T % B
HMRBEARREETRAETG AR
T E IR E R2023F12A31B A £ BE
BEEXAN T EAMBERBERBE: 0%
EBE HEBEEH(E) (EMELED A
2.54fM1.25) - Rz MG mBIETZECGERIEA
& D B A30%F20%) F & K K (E W
BEREHBE1%)

BIEFHAE R H E2023F128318 1
FE - HEMEREET®ERREQ2022
o) e AN B E2023F12831H F
B ERIEH—FREE QR AERE M ER
1,937,000 A R ¥R (B (2022 4F : 48) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e RS Rk M ()

19 Investments in associates (Continued)

19 BE QN RIIRE @)

(a) The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Qidiantongzhou, Yujian Xiaomian,

(@) TxFZHRAMA BE/E B2
BREKK(SEYAEETSBEKX)

Seesaw and Tianshuilai that are individually material to BB ERHE :
the Group:
Qidiantongzhou Yujian Xiaomian Seesaw Tianshuilai
FHE A BRNE i3 KK R
2023 2022 2023 2022 2022 2022
SLUEROS RMB'000 s RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SN TARE NG TARE TARK FAREK
Current assets RBEE 75,604 65440 188,962 110,492 58,622 99,950 78,360 176,354
Non-current assets ERBEE 230,382 201,376 176,100 154,845 229,092 247234 139,094 113,945
Current liabilities mEEE (121,491) (79,529)  (134,094) (76,006)  (90,356) (92,846) (113,821)  (214,262)
Non-current liabilities ERBDAE (57,733)  (49,605)  (15,425) (15,425)  (73,265) (60,644)  (49,881) (43,463)
Net assets BERE 126,762 137,682 215543 173,906 124,093 193,694 53,752 32,574
Revenue WA 317,627 229,944 859,957 472,575 278,168 284,628 539,024 338,869
(Loss)profit for the year ~ E R (E518) /% (13,348) (28259 60,768 (15325  (69,601)  (37,936) 21,177 (1,013)
Total comprehensive (oss)/ 2T (E18),/ Yz
income BE (13,348)  (28,259) 60,768 (15,325)  (69,601) (37,936) 21,177 (1,013
Dividends received from Ut 2 Bt & A A 8.
associates - - 3,432 - - - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

19 Investments in associates (Continued) 19 BE QN TKRE @)
(a) (continued) (a) @

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial T BRERMEBEERNGEHERE
information to the carrying amount of the interest in NERRBERNAERZ2EREZ
associate recognised in the consolidated financial HER

statements:

Qidiantongzhou Yujian Xiaomian Seesaw Tianshuilai
FHEA BRNE [ KKK

2023 2022 2023 2022 2022 2022
RIVIE'000 Iz V(=X (Ol RIVIB'000 Nz V/=X0) RMB'000 RMB'000
Ll TARY BEPNLE TARE TARE BSPNELE TARK

Net assets of the associates Ff & A 7] 2 B &

FE 126,762 137,682 215,543 173,906 124,093 193,694 53,752 32,574
Proportion of the Group's ~ REE R E A 7]
direct ownership JERERE
interests in the £l
associates 19.92% 19.92% 17.16% 17.16% 21.43% 21.43% 25.03% 25.03%

Net assets of interest in AEBEREE
associate attributableto A REH L AE

the Group FE 25,251 27,426 36,987 29,842 26,593 41,509 13,454 8,153
Goodwill BE 20,176 20,176 9,571 9,571 17,520 17,520 33,591 33,591
Effect on foreign curency  INEEEE 7 F &

difference 3,400 2,952 (685) (1,024) (4,582) (5,560) 1,479 839

Carrying amount of the AEERBERF
Group’s interest in the EnzRAE

associate 48,827 50,554 45,873 38,389 39,531 53,469 48,524 42,583
(b) Individually immaterial associates b) EBYAERZHEE QT
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed IR A N NI -t
above, the Group also has interests in a number of RNREBTRNAE TIHESEZAKEAES
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for WAEBRNZHENTEAREZ -

using the equity method.

As at 31 December

M®12A381H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Aggregate carrying amount of BREYAEATHEATY
individually immaterial associates BREARE 47,093 64,109

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s HERAEE AT R :

share of:
Share of profit/(loss) of associates JEAEE AR (BER),/
& A 3,299 (3,253)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2HE(B18) RS ezE 3,299 (3,253)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R R R R M ()

Computer
Goodwill software  Trademark Total
(5SS B Bz &5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR®  TAR®  TAR®  TAR%

At 1 January 2022 M2022F181H
Cost B 2% 580,931 12,266 499,346 1,092,543
Accumulated amortisation and 2 EH#E85 RAE

impairment (5635,436) (6,088) (31,019) (572,543)
Net book amount EREEE 45,495 6,178 468,327 520,000

Year ended 31 December B E2022612A31H

2022 ItFE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 45,495 6,178 468,327 520,000
Additions NE — 104 — 104
Disposal & - (339) - (339)
Amortisation charge By H — (1,464) - (1,464)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 45,495 4,479 468,327 518,301
At 31 December 2022 MR2022F12831H
Cost B AR 580,931 12,031 499,346 1,092,308
Accumulated amortisation and 2 &4 §5 & B E

impairment (5635,436) (7,552) (31,019) (574,007)
Net book amount R EE 45,495 4,479 468,327 518,301

Year ended 31 December HZ2023512A31H

2023 LFE
Opening net book amount FURMEFE 45,495 4,479 468,327 518,301
Additions NE - 85 - 85
Disposal & - (724) = (724)
Amortisation charge B - (1,417) - (1,417)
Impairment B E - - (95,299) (95,299)
Closing net book amount EREEHEE 45,495 2,423 373,028 420,946
At 31 December 2023 72023%12831H
Cost KR 580,931 11,392 499,346 1,091,669
Accumulated amortisation and 2 &+ 84 & 5 &

impairment (535,436) (8,969) (126,318) (670,723)
Net book amount BREEE 45,495 2,423 373,028 420,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

(a)

(b)

1 44 Best Food Holding Company Limited

Useful life of intangible assets

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis
over the expected useful life of 5 years.

The trademarks have a legal life of 10 years and is
renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
would renew the trademark continuously and has the
ability to do so. Various studies including product life
cycle studies, market, competitive and environmental
trends and brand extension opportunities have been
performed by management of the Group, which
support that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the trademarked products are
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful
life. The trademarks will not be amortised until the
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead they will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired.

Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life have been allocated
to the CGUs of the relevant group of restaurants, which
comprise: (1) Beijing HHG Restaurant Management
Co., Ltd. ("HHG”) and its subsidiaries (the “HHG
Group”); and (2) Beijing Xinladao Catering Management
Ltd. (“Xinladao”) and its subsidiaries (the “Xinladao
Group”).

As at 31 December 2023, management has conducted
impairment review on the goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life of the HHG Group and the Xinladao
Group in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”, based on the updated forecasts and
assumptions approved by management.

Annual Report 2023

(a)

(b)

BEENEAFH

BB R TEE AT B FHISF AN
E%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

BIZZ A FEFEHA109 W o] AT
HMZEABI0OFEELE — X KRQF]
EERE AEBEHEEEBHZ
WREBEBRNMEITE - AEEE
BERECZEMART BEERSD
RHEAHR M5 BFRERRBE
FRERDEES ZEMRAIIER
EHnAEREERERALAERES
FIReRE 2 BEWEA]TE RS -

it "EEEEERSAFEAEE
RAERFH BEENHAEETH
AERFHMY TS HE  ES 28
TEEREAS  RERAEREZ
& B E TR BRI -

BEEEFERERNR

RREARTE BERAAERA
ERFHz2BEND O EERBER
MplcREeELEM B8R (1)K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(b) BmEREERENA @

For the HHG Group, the recoverable amount of
the CGUs was determined based on a value-in-
use calculation as at 31 December 2023 and
2022. The calculation used cash flow projections
based on financial forecast approved by
management covering a five-year period.

Management engaged an independent external
valuer to assist in performing the impairment
assessments. Based on management’s
calculation, the recoverable amount of the HHG
Group as at 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately RMB358 million (2022: 432 million),
which was 13.8% (2022: 25.7%) higher than its
carrying amount. Key assumptions used to
determine the CGUs’ value-in-use were as
follows:

Value assigned to

MMEAREEMs  REeEELS
iz 2 AT Uk [B] € B8 J5 AR 3% 7R 2023 FF
N2022F12 A1 B W £ B &
TEMEE - ZAEHIRIEERE
JZ #E R = T 2R 2 B 7% 7E A
KARSRETEAETT -

EEECESB LN EHERMG
PETHRENH BREEEEZ
FFE - ME A S B R2028F12
H318 z A el & 54 A358 7
BT ARE((R022F 14327 B
TARE) BREEMERS13.8%
(2022%F :25.7%) - BEE R & &
EENZEREEMRBZEE
BRE&W T -

key assumption Approach to determining key assumption
ITREXTERRZEE IEBRREEREZE
2022
Revenue (% compound growth 9.0% 13.8% Forecasted revenue growth rates and gross
rate) margins were determined based on past
WA(EERREEDL) performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development.
BRARAZBERRENEDENBERRR
EREUTSEREHSGSS -
Gross margins 42.6% 45.3%
EH%
Long-term growth rate 2.2% 3.0% Estimated based on the relevant industry growth
(perpetual growth rate) forecasts and does not exceed the average
REE R % long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
(kR EXR) HREBTEEREAMGH S A
TEREEBTEZ FORPEREK -
Pre-tax discount rates 16.3% 16.0% Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant

BRBATITR %

segment and the country in which the HHG
Group operates.

REEBEABSTRNMEAEELEMT
TR 2 FrE R R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

20 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

0

Impairment assessment for the HHG
Group (Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key
assumptions

1 46 Best Food Holding Company Limited

If the compound revenue growth rates used
in the value-in-use calculation for the HHG
Group had been 4.6% lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December
2023 (4.4% instead of 9.0%), the value-in-
use of the HHG Group would approximate
its carrying amount.

If the gross margins used in the value-in-
use calculation for the HHG Group had
been 1.1% lower than management’s
estimates at 31 December 2023 (41.5%
instead of 42.6%), the value-in-use of the
HHG Group would approximate its carrying
amount.

If the pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections of the HHG Group
had been 2.6% higher than management’s
estimates (18.9% instead of 16.3%), the
value-in-use of the HHG Group would
approximate its carrying amount.

Annual Report 2023
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(b) BmEREERENA @

(i)

MEeAEBRENG @

FERREEBBHTE

WAEFENEAEEE
BEBEEZESKRAEER
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WAEFEMEAEEF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the HHG
Group (Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key
assumptions (Continued)

Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amounts of the
CGUs to exceed their recoverable amounts.

Based on above assessment, management of the
Company are of the view that there is no
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life for the HHG Group as at 31
December 2023.

Impairment assessment for the
Xinladao Group

For the Xinladao Group, management had
determined the recoverable amount of the CGUs
by assessing the fair value less cost of disposal
(“FVLCOD”) of the underlying assets as at 31
December 2023 and 2022, which was higher
than the value-in-use of the Xinladao Group as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively. The
valuation was considered to be level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy due to unobservable inputs used
in the valuation.

e B R R R B R ()

20 HEREFREEE @
(b) BERBERENR @

(i)

MEeAEBRENG @
FTERREESHNEEE)

EEEMRE MEEFZFRR
HIREMAEAEES  HHD
SRR ELENUZKREER
HE TR E 2 3R -

RIBELMFH AR2FEEER
B 202312 A31H  MAEA
SECHEREEERAUFERASF
HreBEEEWERBE-

MRE s B EN G

RFHBEEEmE EEECSE
BEGHEBEEZ AR EER L
EXRA BErReELBEMZA
heEl< BB RTHE
& [F PN2023F12 4310 2 & A
BE BHRZHEEATITEHE
M ABE  WERAEAREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and b) FERFEREIR@®
trademarks (Continued)

Management engaged an independent external BIEE D BB IS L ISR E R 3
valuer to assist in performing the impairment B 1T R B FF (& - 12028 12 A
assessments. The approach and key assumptions 1A EBERSELEBULIAR
used to determine the CGUs’ FVLCOD as at 31 BEREEKAMEB T ENE
December 2023 were as follows: ER|AT :

Value assigned to

Valuation key assumption
Technique Unobservable inputs as at 31 December Approach to determining key assumption
R12A31B 2 EZE
i B 5 9l FUBENEAZE TERRZUE TERREES T
2022
Market approach  Enterprise value/sales 0.71 1.839 Asat 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
5% multiple (times) enterprise value/sales multiples represent the
TrEBEEE respective median of the enterprise value/
RBEH(E) sales multiples of selected comparable

public companies (each of which is engaged
in the catering business and listed on the
Stock Exchange) as at the end of the
reporting period. The comparable companies
adopted in the valuation represented a same
group of comparable public companies as at
31 December 2023 and 2022, except for the
addition of one public company in the group
of comparable companies as at 31
December 2023, which was not included as
at 31 December 2022 as the directors
considered it not comparable to the Xinladao
Group based on the then circumstances.
20234 K 202212 A1 H - EE fﬁ/
HERBEEERNRENARA—ALE
Tﬁﬁfim T@E%%ﬁmﬁﬁl
REZFTEm) 2 BB/ HEEEH
zm%¢4% B 7202312 A31 B #T
EH—RAALRETRARARBEEEN
BASN + 72023 F2022% 12 A 31 B ff &
KEDMALL AR AR —EAALE £
MARAE - % EmRER2022F127318
i*@ﬁﬁm BRESRREEER
BN TERESEE W EA L o
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20 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

trademarks (Continued)

(i)

Impairment assessment for the
Xinladao Group (Continued)

Valuation
Technique Unobservable inputs
B 5 15 FUBENEABE

Discount for lack of
marketability (‘DLOM”)
TRZ 5 R T

Control premium

] B

Cost of disposal (% of
fair value)
s % ﬁ}z A(ARME
o)

e B R R R B R ()

20 BFEREFREE@m

(b) BERBERENR @

Value assigned to
key assumption
as at 31 December
R12AMBSEE

(iy FHEE

£ BRI E 4 @)

Approach to determining key assumption

1%

1%

TERRZUE TERREES

25% 25% Quantified by the Black-Scholes option pricing
model which is one of the methods
commonly used in estimating DLOM.

BRmER - N AT EREET

Bt ZAERMGHBRZ MG RBILH
BeERAEZz—

10% 10% Estimated based on the median of the control

premium adopted for comparable
transactions.

BEAMELBXSRAB 2 EGEREZS
B st

Estimated based on the Company’s experience
with disposal of assets and on industry
benchmarks.

BEARRALEEEZBRRITERE
&gt e

Based on the above approach and key
assumptions, the FVLCOD of the Xinladao Group
amounted to RMB116 million (2022: RMB249
million) and was 45.1% lower than its carrying
amount, management’s impairment assessment
as at 31 December 2023 is analysed as follows:

BEEAFEREERR  FH
BEECZCAANBEBREEKAR
116 8 & T A R # (2021 4F : 249
BETARE) REEBER
45.1% & & 12 [E ) 2023 F 12 A 31
B2 BEFEITOT :

31 December

2023
2023 £
12831 H
RMB’000
FAR%
Carrying amount of identifiable net assets AHEBFEERAEAE 211,299
Less: recoverable amount (being the FVLCOD) & : AT Y¢ Bl & %8 (B0 2 7 B E
& R AS) (116,000)
Impairment loss B EE 95,299
Allocated to: PEE :
— Trademarks with indefinite useful life (Note) — BB R A[(EHAEH
i (M) 95,299
BRERERATE —E==
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

20 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i)

1 50 Best Food Holding Company Limited

Impairment assessment for the
Xinladao Group (Continued)
Note:

Management allocates the impairment loss of approximately
RMB95 million to trademarks with indefinite life and no
impairment loss is allocated to other non-monetary assets of the
CGUs (mainly including property, plant and equipment, and
right-of-use assets), because management is of the view that
the fair value less costs of disposal or value in use is greater
than the respective original carrying value of these assets.

Following the impairment, the Group reassessed the useful life
of trademarks with indefinite useful life of the Xinladao Group
and considered that their useful lives will not be affected
following this decision.

Impact of possible changes in key

assumptions

o If the enterprise value/sales multiple used in
the FVLCOD calculation for the Xinladao
Group had been 0.07 times lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December
2023 (0.64 times instead of 0.71 times), the
Group would have had to recognise an
additional impairment against the carrying
amount of trademarks with indefinite life of
approximately RMB12 million.

° If the DLOM used in the FVLCOD calculation
for the Xinladao Group had been 2.5%
higher than management’s estimates at 31
December 2023 (27.5% instead of 25%),
the Group would have had to recognise an
additional impairment against the carrying
amount of trademarks with indefinite life of
approximately RMB4 million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(b) %%&% :sﬂﬁ/,\

Impact of possible changes in key
assumptions (Continued)

As to the value-in-use calculations of the Xinladao
Group as at 31 December 2023, management
used cash flow projections based on financial
forecast approved by management covering a
five-year period from year 2024 to 2028 (2022: a
six-year period from year 2023 to 2028, the
length of which was determined to be more than
five years because during the acquisition of the
Xinladao Group in 2018, management had
prepared a ten-year financial budget from 2019 to
2028 after performing due diligence work and
considering various factors including industry
characteristics of the chained hotpot restaurants,
development stage of the Xinladao Group,
predictability of business plan and operating
scale, net operating cashflow forecasted versus
funding needs for business expansions, etc.
Therefore, during the impairment tests after the
acquisition, management determined it is
appropriate to keep the same forecast period
covered by the original financial budget and
update the forecast until 2028, after which a
stable perpetual growth rate is adopted). The key
assumptions adopted in the value-in-use
calculations were as follows:

FERREEBEHTZE ()

B E ¥ ¥ B & B R 2023F
1ANEMNERAEERAR S
MIER  EREEEI ENRE
B 2024 F £ 20284 KI5 F B 75 78
Bl (20224 @ B 20234 £ 20284
HeFHE REARSFRREAS
2018 F NI T RBEEE - B8
BEETEBRATCTIEREET
FEERAXBEEHARENITE
B MHREESENBRERER -
B 75 5T &) 00 8 & R AR &y m] 78R
M BB EIR & M B E TS
BRERNESE RS BT —
D B 20194 Z 2028 F K104 Hi
BEA) Al EREEN
BENRT BEEERTHERR
B 7% 78 B R & 1) 48 [R) 78 8 BR R %
& I A% T8 R 5 #T E 20284 -
ZEBERABEN KA RE  fF
REEFERIERANETERR
W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and (b) BEKEERERNR
trademarks (Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key FTERBEECEHEE (E)
assumptions (Continued)

Value assigned
to key
assumption  Approach to determining key assumption
PTHEXTER FEBRRIRETELZE

R2BE
2022
Revenue 1.8% 11.7% Forecasted revenue growth rates and gross
(% compound growth rate) margins were determined based on past
WAEEEBEEEDLT) performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development.
Gross margins 60% 64% FERAMAEERREFMEDARBERRAR
EMEH EEBHMISERBHEL -
Long-term growth rate 2.2%  3.0% Estimated based on the relevant industry growth
(perpetual growth rate) forecasts and does not exceed the average
RHE R R (OKEERE) long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
EREBATEERBAKASLE BXTHE
HERTEZ PTHORBEREK -
Pre-tax discount rates 16.8% 15.9% Reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
B Bt B 47 IR & segment and the country in which the Xinladao
Group operates.
RREEREES R REEELEMAER
R ERR
The decrease in the revenue growth rate as at 31 Ro023E 12 A31H W A E
December 2023 was mainly due to, among KT FEEFR(HPaFE)
others, the lower revenue base of certain D022 FEH R BEEE TEEMNK
restaurants of the Xinladao Group in 2022 which AEEHK - A i 78 2023 F H)
led to a higher expected revenue growth rate in WAEREER S LA RRTE
2023 as well as the decrease in the number of B HEARS - BIEAEEETIEE I &
restaurants of the Xinladao Group during the VHREE  HEEERENEE
forecast period based on financial budgets L= R

approved by the management of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

20 BEREFEE @
b) BERFEREASR

20 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks (Continued)

(i) Impairment assessment for the (i) FrHRBESEEREFTE @)

Xinladao Group (Continued)

Impact of possible changes in key

assumptions (Continued)

Based on above assessment, the amount of
impairment loss as calculated under the value-in-
use calculation is higher than that calculated
using the FVLCOD. As a result, management of
the Company are of the view that impairment
losses of RMB95.3 million, being the difference of
the FVLCOD of the Xinladao Group and the
respective carrying amount, are recognised for
trademarks with indefinite useful life for the Xinladao
Group as at 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

21 Trade and other receivables

FERREEBEHTZE ()

EREMFTH EREAEAES
ETHREEBEESREAARE
BEREERANFE Bt A7
EEERAE FHRBEEMNAR
BERLEKRAESHEMER
MEREBIEBE L BRFHE
& B2023% 12 A 31 B (20224 :
EINERBAEASTHREIZEFR
ERBEEK -

21 BRE S R HE M RIE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® TFARK
Trade receivables (a) JEW B 5 FIE (a) 11,327 18,737
Other receivables (b) H th JE U FRTE (b) 98,803 89,743
Total trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K H b 3R IE 258 110,130 103,480
Less: provision for expected credit loss i : FEWE 5 Z B TE H1 12 B
allowance for trade receivables BB (959) (361)
provision for expected credit loss HEm g IanEEER
allowance for other receivables BREE (29,101) (12,782)
Trade and other receivables — net JEWE 5 Kk H A58 — F 5 80,070 90,337
Including: Hep:
Current portion BDER 3B
Trade receivables — net JEWE 5508 — F5E 10,368 13,376
Other receivables — net H b W FRIE — F 5 57,548 59,234
67,916 72,610
Non-current portion 3k B B B o
Other receivables — net (c) H th fE U RIE — JFEE(C) 12,154 17,727
Trade and other receivables — net TEWE 5 N HMRIE — F58 80,070 90,337
BRERERATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R E )

21 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 21 EWEZ R HEMIRIE @

(a) Trade receivables (a) EWE ZIE
As at 31 December

®12H31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARE
Related parties (Note 34) B 7 (T 5E34) 1,708 934
Third parties F=7 9,619 12,803
Subtotal INEE 11,327 13,737

Less: provision for expected credit loss & - 78 2915 F3 18 - B

allowance (959) (861)
Trade receivables — net JEWE SFIE — FH 10,368 13,376
The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the FEWE S HRERFEPRIZEEZELR
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as ZEBSTOT
follows:
As at 31 December
M®12A81H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
SN FARK
Within 6 months 61& A LA 9,652 11,500
Over 6 months HBiE6E A 1,675 2,237

11,327 13,737
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A B R AR Y EE ()

(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

(a) EWE 5 KEu@m)

As at 31 December

M12H31H

2022

RMB’000

FARY

As at 1 January ®1A1H 361 406
Provision for expected credit loss allowance 788 (= 18 5k # 15 598 177
Written off during the year as uncollectible £ Pyl 8 /& -~ 7] Ug @) - (222)
As at 31 December M12A31H 959 361

Trade receivables are all denominated in RMB.

For the restaurant operation and delivery business, the
Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
cash and credit card settlement. For sales of food
ingredients, a credit period not exceeding 180 days is
granted to the majority of customers. The credit period
provided to customers can vary based on a number of
factors including nature of operations and Group’s
relationship with the customer.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amount is considered to be the same as
their fair value.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The
loss allowance increased by RMB598,000 to
RMB959,000 for trade receivables during the current
reporting period (2022: The loss allowance decreased
by RMB45,000 to RMB361,000 for trade receivables
during the current reporting period). Note 3.1(b)
provides for details about the calculation of the
allowance.

Information about the expected credit loss allowance
for trade receivables and the Group’s exposure to
credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
can be found in Note 3.1.

FEWE KA UARKEGE -

REBEERIINEEBME  ~A5EH
HEREFCEEFTEUREMERTE
HE-BREERMME MAZHEE
FERFZBRERATNBEISOX B TR
FzhEHASEARZ(BELL
BRAEEEEFE ZBE) MAR -

HRABEURAZEHMEE - AR
HERGESEEARBEMER -

AEEBERBABE BV KHRELERFONR
2RI EEEREBL KA
ERWEZFIBFRGFERBRHER
BE-RNARSEHE BRESZHRE
# hN598,0007T A K ¥+ % 959,000 7T
AR (2022F - BiE EWE 5 5 E
A 45,0007C A R ZE 361,000 AR
) o [ A)EH I EBEE BT E 2

EACK

EHRKEZFAAREREREME
RASEEEZERRR  INERE R
KA RE g2 BRERHEESA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

(b) Other receivables

(b) H i & W R IR

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2022
RMB’000
TFARK
Consideration receivable in relation to B, L EB S QA
partial disposal of investment in an ®E 2 EBARED
associate (i) 36,496 36,496
Amount receivable in relation to capital BHERLHEE RNRIRE
reduction of investment in an associate (i) = & Y& FE (i) 8,995 —
Lease deposits HEHS 22,731 25,760
Amount due from related parties JE Ui B8 B 5 k08
(Note 34(b)) (M 7E34(0)) 19,254 16,450
Loans receivable due from third parties (i) & W & = 75 & 3 i) 6,413 6,413
Advance to employees BRTREE 745 797
Others Hi 4,169 3,827
98,803 89,743
Less: provision for expected credit loss 3 : A Bi{E I8 K B 15
allowance (29,101) (12,782)
Other receivables — net Hibpelg 218 — JF %A 69,702 76,961

Note:

(i)

(i)

1 56 Best Food Holding Company Limited

The amount represented the consideration receivable in relation (i)
to the partial disposal of certain interest in Seesaw in previous

year. At the same time, pursuant to the share purchase

agreement, the Group had received a deposit of

RMB?20,000,000 from the purchaser which will be refunded to

the purchaser immediately before the settlement of the above

consideration, and such deposit was recorded as other

payables in the consolidated balance sheet (Note 26).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, an associate of the
Group reduced its capital and the total receivables due to the
Group amounted to RMB19,884,000, among which
RMB10,889,000 had been received prior to 31 December
2023. The remaining receivable of RMB8,995,000 was recorded
as other receivables in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2023, all of which had been subsequently received in
January 2024.

(i)

As at 31 December 2023, the balance represented loans
receivable of RMB6,413,000 (2022: RMB6,413,000) due from
certain shareholders of an associate of the Group, which were
repayable in 2022 and bore interest at 7% per annum. As at 31
December 2022, these loans were past due and classified as
Stage 3. Based on the results of management’s assessment,
an expected credit loss allowance of RMB6,413,000 were
provided as at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB6,413,000).

(i)

Annual Report 2023
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1 H b & A 3R (KT RE26) -

HZE2023F 12 A31 B ILF[E - A& E B
& X B RCA 18 78 B9 FE UL AR X 7% 19,884,000
T AR - HF10,889,0007T A R B &
R 20234F 12 A31 H AT U E o 72023 4F 12
A318 ' F#:8,995000T A REE REE
BEBBRAARS(EHMEWRKIE - b
1% 2 BN 20241 AU E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(C) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, non-current
portion mainly comprised lease deposits and loans
receivables due from related parties.

(d) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair values of

e B IS R R YA ()

(c) 20234 %2022 12 A31H * JEENEA
HrrZpEHERe RERB@ES
B

(d) R2023%F K2022F 128318 « EWE

trade and other receivables approximated their carrying SREMBRBBZARBEEEE®RE
amounts. BE .
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2022
RMB’000
TARK
Current REE D
Convertible bonds — interest payable due AR ES — —F N EE
within one year Z PR A 16,602 16,366
Non-current EREE S
Convertible bonds AR (E & 577,788 532,024

As at 31 December 2022, current portion of the convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) issued by the Company
to Sonic Tycoon Limited (the “Investor”) amounted
to HK$18,320,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB16,366,000), which represented interest payable due on
23 November 2023 and was calculated at the coupon rate of
3% per annum (the “2023 Due Interest”). The remaining
amount of the Convertible Bonds were classified as non-
current liabilities, including the interest payable accrued from
23 November 2018 (the date of issue) to 23 November 2022
(the fourth anniversary of the date of issue) given the Investor
had sent a notice to the Company on 19 December 2022, in
which the Investor agreed the Company to postpone the
payment date of such interest to 23 November 2025.

R2022F12A31H A AR REFAER
ARI(HFEEDBETZAIBRRBRESFZR
D & % 418,320,00078 Tt (#E & R 4
16,366,000 A & #) + &20234 11 A 23 H
BB EAS ) B - R F F K 3% 5T & (12023
FREHAMED A RBELFBRBEESIES
FRBAR  BIEBA2018F11 5230 (317
H)Z2022%11 238 (377 B 890 & &)
HEETNEMFE  ERABREEER
2022F 12 A19R EHBA EFREER
QPR Z S F B A 3R = 2025 F
11 238 o

&
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On 20 November 2023, the Investor sent a notice to the
Company, in which the Investor agreed the Company to
postpone the payment date of the 2023 Due Interest to 23
November 2025. As at 31 December 2023, current portion of
the Convertible Bonds amounted to HK$18,320,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB16,602,000), which represented
interest payable due on 23 November 2024 and was
calculated at the coupon rate of 3% per annum. The
remaining amount of the Convertible Bonds were classified
as non-current liabilities.

The major terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds are
as follows:

(i) Interest rate

The Company shall pay an interest on the Convertible
Bonds at 3% per annum.

(ii) Conversion price

The Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the
Company’s shares at the initial conversion price of
HK$1.18 per share, subject to adjustments. The
conversion price will be subject to adjustment for,
amongst others, consolidation, subdivision or
reclassification of shares, capitalisation of profits or
reserves, capital distribution, dividends, rights issues of
shares or options over shares, rights issues of other
securities, modification of rights of conversion and other
offers to shareholders.

(iii) Availability period for the Company to
issue the Convertible Bonds

The availability period for the Company to issue the
Convertible Bonds is a fixed term of two years
commencing from 13 November 2016 and neither party
will have the right to extend.

1 58 Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR A B R AR B EE ()

R2023F 11 A20H ' & & & A A 7 & &H
BAEFEEERE QR 20235 5 F
B IL B £2025F 11 A23H » R20234F12
A3t AI@BREF 2RI A
18,320,000 7T (18 E 7 #716,366,000 7T A &
B2 . 2024411 A 238 B EAR) FE N A B
REFEI%HHE - AIBRESFHRBE HHE
BIERBALE -

ABRRESZ EEERARGEEDT

() =

KRB A F M R 3% > Al 2 i (8 75
ZHME

(i) HirE

AMRBREHFBA RN TERES R
1188 LTERABARNRIRMG WA T
FAE -ERETETER(EHRRE) R
BEH FKEXEFHHE - a K FH
HBEXREL BERADIRER - BB - EBER
Mo ERE BEHEMES ElE
RERRRRETEMBEEMAE -

mn?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ&ﬁ%Zﬁ
X HB
AArRBETABRRES 2B XA
20165 11 A13H B AHIM F - E 1]
—FHYEELEER -



(iv)

(v)

(vi)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Maturity

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the
Convertible Bonds, or subject to the agreement of the
bondholder, the seventh anniversary of the date of
issue.

On 19 December 2022, the Company sent a notice to
the Investor and obtained the consent from the Investor
thereon, pursuant to which the Company and the
Investor agreed that the maturity date of the Convertible
Bonds be extended to the seventh anniversary of the
date of issue (i.e. from 23 November 2023 to 23
November 2025).

Redemption on maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the Company will redeem the
Convertible Bonds at an amount equal to the principal
amount on the maturity date, plus accrued interest and
all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the
Convertible Bonds which remain unpaid on the maturity
date. The Company may not redeem the Convertible
Bonds at its option prior to the maturity date, except on
redemption on change of control and redemption on
delisting as described below.

Redemption at the option of the
bondholder

Following the occurrence of a change of control,
the bondholder will have the right at its option, to
require the Company to redeem in whole but not
in part such holder’s Convertible Bonds.

The redemption price is the HK dollar equivalent
amount which is the outstanding principal
amount, plus the amount of interest representing
8% of the internal rate of return of the principal
amount of the Bond from the date of issue to the
payment date (the “Early Redemption Amount”).
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e B IS R R YA ()

(vi) Redemption at the option of the
bondholder (continued)

In the event that the Company’s shares cease to
be listed or admitted to trading on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, the bondholder shall have the
right, at its option, to require the Company to
redeem, in whole but not in part only, such
bondholder’s Convertible Bonds at the Early
Redemption Amount.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond at the issue date. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option and
recognised in shareholders’ equity on special reserve.

The movement in the components of the Convertible
Bonds during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2023 are as follows:

(vii EXRHRARERD

WA 2B B fn T B & BB
EHRTEEERT B IME
B AESKAEABRATER
ERANBIZIEAE D EE D
ZEHFRFEAZ 2 (B AL IR
) A ERES

BEBIZAABERRETERS
BIFRABRBREFZMIGNERGFTE - P
SHRESRBOEEEREL FERRRI
FmERRBEPER -

H E2022F K2023F12 A31 8 IF &
AR EHFARIS D 2 EBIT

Liability Equity
component component Total
=R g:) I &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TARY TARE TARE

As at 1 January 2022 R2022%F1 A1H 502,068 104,294 606,362
Interest expenses ()) F B () 39,971 — 39,971

Modification (i 1t 24 i (43,689) — (43,688)
Exchange difference P& H Z% 50,039 - 50,039
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 548,390 104,294 652,684
As at 1 January 2023 R2023%F1A81H 548,390 104,294 652,684
Interest expenses (i) FE () 37,815 - 37,815
Exchange difference PE X ZE%E 8,185 - 8,185
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12 A31H 594,390 104,294 698,684
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22 Convertible bonds (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The interest expense of RMB37,815,000 (2022: RMB39,971,000) was
calculated using the effective interest method.

As disclosed in (iv) above, on 19 December 2022, the maturity date of
the Convertible Bonds was extended from 23 November 2023 to 23
November 2025. Based on management’s assessment, the above
extension of maturity date does not constitute a substantial modification
of the Convertible Bond